

Argumentation Update in YALLA (Yet Another Logic Language for Argumentation)

Pierre Bisquert, Claudette Cayrol, Florence Dupin de Saint-Cyr, Marie-Christine Lagasquie-Schiex

► To cite this version:

Pierre Bisquert, Claudette Cayrol, Florence Dupin de Saint-Cyr, Marie-Christine Lagasquie-Schiex. Argumentation Update in YALLA (Yet Another Logic Language for Argumentation). [Research Report] IRIT-RR-2016-05-FR, IRIT - Institut de recherche en informatique de Toulouse. 2016, pp.1-80. hal-02884119

HAL Id: hal-02884119 https://hal.science/hal-02884119v1

Submitted on 29 Jun 2020

HAL is a multi-disciplinary open access archive for the deposit and dissemination of scientific research documents, whether they are published or not. The documents may come from teaching and research institutions in France or abroad, or from public or private research centers. L'archive ouverte pluridisciplinaire **HAL**, est destinée au dépôt et à la diffusion de documents scientifiques de niveau recherche, publiés ou non, émanant des établissements d'enseignement et de recherche français ou étrangers, des laboratoires publics ou privés.

Argumentation Update in YALLA (Yet Another Logic Language for Argumentation)

Pierre Bisquert, Claudette Cayrol, Florence Dupin de Saint-Cyr, M-Christine Lagasquie-Schiex

IRIT, Université Paul Sabatier, 118 route de Narbonne, 31062 Toulouse, France

pierre.bisquert@supagro.inra.fr
{ccayrol,bannay,lagasq}@irit.fr

Tech. Report IRIT RR- -2016- -05- -FR

2016

Abstract

This article¹ proposes a complete framework for handling the dynamics of an abstract argumentation system. This frame can encompass several belief bases under the form of several argumentation systems, more precisely it is possible to express and study how an agent who has her own argumentation system can interact on a target argumentation system (that may represent a state of knowledge at a given stage of a debate). The two argumentation systems are defined inside a reference argumentation system called the universe which constitutes a kind of "common language". This paper establishes three main results. First, we show that change in argumentation in such a framework can be seen as a particular case of belief update. Second, we have introduced a new logical language called YALLA in which the structure of an argumentation system can be encoded, enabling to express all the basic notions of argumentation theory (defense, conflict-freeness, extensions) by formulae of YALLA. Third, due to previous works about dynamics in argumentation we have been in position to provide a set of new properties that are specific for argumentation update.

¹This report has been submitted as a research article to the International Journal of Approximate Reasoning. It has been accepted with minor revisions in March 2016.

Contents

1	Introduction	1
2	Framework 2.1 Working assumptions 2.2 Abstract argumentation 2.3 Change in argumentation 2.4 Change characterizations, planning and belief change	6 6 8 11 14
3	Belief change theory	18
	3.1 Classical update postulates	19
	3.2 Update postulates respecting transition constraints	21
4	YALLA: logical theory for abstract argumentation graphs	26
	4.1 The basic language YALLA	26
	4.1.1 Structure over Σ	. 27
	4.1.2 Specific axioms	28
	4.2 The language YALLA_{U}	29
	4.2.1 Structure over $\Sigma_{\mathbf{U}}$	29
	4.2.2 Specific axioms	30
	4.2.3 Examples of formulae in $YALLA_U$	31
	4.3 Encoding argumentation semantics	33
5	Belief update and argumentation	34
	5.1 Classical belief update in abstract argumentation	35
	5.2 Belief update postulates adapted to our argumentation frame-	
	work	36
	5.3 Characterizations as a way to specialize update operators for	
	argumentation	38
	5.4 Particular cases of generalized enforcement operators	43
6	Trial example	44
	6.1 Prosecutor turn	44
	6.2 Lawyer turn	47
7	Related work	49
8	Conclusion	55
\mathbf{A}	Proofs	57

References

1 Introduction

Argumentation is commonly used in everyday life where we share and confront our opinions. We use arguments to sustain an idea, we use counterarguments in order to attack another idea. Argumentation can be viewed as a process done in order to exchange information together with some justification with the aim to obtain well-justified knowledge, or with the aim to increase or decrease the approval of a point of view, or to confront and combine different views. When several people are sharing arguments the argumentation is pervaded by changes. Those changes may concern the public state of a debate or the agent's representation of the world. Each time an argument is uttered, the listener might change her view of the world. This is why it is important to analyze the link between argumentation and change. Let us notice that argumentation does not necessarily require an audience, since it can be done by only one agent (and in that case it is well adapted for reasoning and decision making).

In artificial intelligence, argumentation has been defined for formalizing argumentative reasoning and in order to automatize some forms of dialog (identified in [55]). As done in many other approaches we place ourselves in the framework of abstract argumentation theory (where arguments are not precisely defined; see [31]) which handles argumentation systems that are graphs whose vertices are arguments and edges are attacks between those arguments. More generally, argumentation theory aims at computing the acceptability of arguments [31, 11, 3]. A natural development of this theory is called *enforcement* [8] and consists in finding a set of arguments to add to an argumentation system in order to make accepted a particular set of arguments.

For instance, let us consider the argumentation system containing only the two arguments " a_0 : Mr. X is innocent of the murder of Mrs. X" and " a_1 : Mr. X is guilty of the murder of Mrs. X"². These arguments cannot be accepted together since they are mutually exclusive, and it is difficult to decide which argument should be accepted. To enforce a_0 to be accepted it is possible to add Argument " a_4 : Mr. X loves his wife, a man that loves his wife cannot murder her" which depreciates a_1 and leads to accept { a_0, a_4 }.

In this paper we want to propose a framework that generalizes this type of example (change in argumentation) and allows us to reason about this

 $^{^{2}}$ This example is borrowed from Bisquert et al. [12] and is described in more details inside the paper.

change. In such a framework, it will be possible to describe several argumentation systems (*e.g.* for representing an agent's mind or the current state of a dialog), to express their properties (for instance their structure, their sets of acceptable arguments), and to reason about their evolution. Our approach uses notions of belief change theory and is justified by the following remarks.

Dynamics of argumentation covers more than enforcement. In the literature, enforcement is classically considered as typical of a subfield called "dynamics in argumentation" which has already been studied broadly (*e.g.* [50, 43, 14, 24]). Nevertheless, the topic of "dynamics in argumentation" is more general than enforcement since it aims at *reasoning about change* in an argumentation system. For instance some underlying questions can be "In what extent the arrival of an argument modifies the accepted arguments?", "What is the impact of a change in an argumentation system?", "Which change is desirable and why?".

Moreover, the notion of enforcement can also be generalized in order to consider removal of arguments [12, 13] and addition/removal of attacks [24, 59] and not only addition of arguments.

This is why our framework enables us to study *generalized enforcement* operators and their associated change properties.

- Links with planning. From the point of view of an agent that aims at enforcing the acceptation of a set of arguments, Mr. X's example is a one-step planning problem. Indeed, planning (see *e.g.* [33]) aims at building a strategy (sequence of actions) to perform in order to solve a task and so it can be used for handling change in artificial intelligence. In enforcement, the problem is to find only one action that leads to satisfy the goal to make accepted a given set of arguments.
- Links with persuasion. Studying if a listener has been persuaded by a change is a natural application of dynamics in argumentation. Indeed, the persuasion process studied in the literature is a particular planning process which consists in uttering some arguments (hence producing some actions) in order to justify a fact or a decision [19, 38, 32, 4] (*i.e.* to achieve some enforcements).³ Usually a persuasion dialog involves several agents that have opposite views on a subject and that aim at

³Moreover argumentation theory has also been used in order to analyze persuasion dialogs (see e.g. [9, 48, 2, 20, 35]).

persuading each other to change their opinion. It is possible to distinguish two kinds of persuasion settings depending on the outcome evaluation: either one agent has changed her opinion, we call it "private persuasion", or it is publicly proven that the opinion of one agent is not acceptable, called "public persuasion".⁴. In this paper, we situate ourselves in a context where an agent wants to reason about the changes that occur on a target argumentation system that represents the current state of the dialog.

Clearly, our framework is related to *planning* and *persuasion*.

Incomplete knowledge and restrictions on operations. Public persuasion implies the existence of several agents. In this paper we consider that the agents may have (1) an incomplete knowledge and (2) that their actions are restricted with regard to their available knowledge.

For instance, suppose that the two arguments a_0 and a_1 have been uttered during a trial. The possibility that a_0 is accepted publicly after the lawyer intervention depends on her awareness of the existence of an argument defeating a_1 . If the lawyer does not know a_4 or that a_4 attacks a_1 then she cannot utter it, hence whatever she may say, a_0 will not be enforced in the public state of the dialog.

Thus the agents may have restricted possibilities according to their (*incomplete*) knowledge and according to the current state of the dialog. The private knowledge of an agent as well as the target being represented by argumentation systems, the restricted possibilities of agents are represented by constraints on the possible changes that they are authorized to perform on the target system. *Enabling constraints* is also a generalization of the enforcement framework, these constraints are restricting the possible changes that can occur to the target.

Let us assume now that Mr. X was not very vigilant at the beginning of the audience, he knows that the arguments a_0 , a_1 and a_4 have been presented (a_4 for attacking a_1). Moreover, he knows that a_4 can be attacked by " a_7 : Mr. X is known to be venal and cannot love sincerely his wife", but he does not know whether the prosecutor had given or not a_7 . Then Mr. X may hesitate between several systems that may

⁴Formally, in private persuasion, it can be checked that the argument representing the subject of the dialog has changed its status in the argumentation system of one agent. Public persuasion uses a public argumentation system on which each agent may act by participating to the dialog; this public argumentation system is the target of every agent and represents the current state of the dialog.

represent the current state of the debate about his own guiltiness: there is a possible state of the debate in which a_0 is accepted and another one in which it is rejected depending on the fact that a_7 is present or not.

This situation is another case of *incomplete knowledge*, this time it concerns the target argumentation system. The study of change in case of incomplete knowledge relates to the domain of belief change theory developed below.

Belief change in argumentation: revision vs update. The classical approaches [1, 57, 40, 42] of belief change theory are defining different ways to take into account the arrival of a new piece of information and study the properties of change according to these differences. A main result of our work is to show that when someone utters publicly an argument, we are facing a change that is called "update" in belief change theory, since it involves an action that modifies the part of the external world relating to the current debate. This is very important since many works about enforcement (e.q. [44, 25, 28]) are using the term "revision" which is not always appropriate for the study of public debates. Indeed, in public argumentation, the public state of the debate is evolving through the addition (or removal) of arguments hence there is a change in the world. It means that the agent's beliefs (represented by an argumentation system) about the world and more precisely about the part of the world relating to the debate, should be updated. In order to better explain the difference between the two concepts, let us come back to our example.

When Mr. X hears the lawyer uttering Argument a_4 then he knows that a change has occurred to the current state of the debate, hence the reasoning process amounts to update the representation of the debate state by the fact that a_4 is present in it: it will consist in making a change on every possible argumentation system that can represent the current state of the debate such that in every resulting state, a_4 is present. Mr. X does not use the same reasoning about change when he learns that he is considered as innocent (i.e., that a_0 is accepted), since in that case the dialog current state has not changed. It is Mr. X's awareness about the dialog state that has changed, the belief change operation done in that case is called revision.

As the previous example shows, we do not consider revision as useless within the context of a debate. For instance, the public or private enunciation of an argument might lead to a revision of a hearer's beliefs about the discussed topic. However, we focus on the beliefs that an agent has about the current state of a debate and we distinguish it from her beliefs about the world representing the discussed topic (*e.g.* whether Mr. X actually killed his wife or not). Hence, in this paper, our study focusses on *update operations*.

More than planning and persuasion. Belief change theory gives tools for *reasoning about change*. This reasoning may be done by a passive agent who wants to understand what is the state of the debate after the occurrence of an external change (*e.g.* the change is caused by another agent who has uttered an argument). So it is not a planning problem.

For instance, assume that the lawyer has done an objection about one argument uttered by the prosecutor. Mr. X may want to know if several different points of view may still exist in every possible argumentation system representing the current state of the dialog. This knowledge could inform him about the remaining time left before a conclusion will be reached.

In this example, we see that Mr. X is not necessarily interested in knowing what arguments are accepted but rather in knowing if it is possible that the target argumentation system has only one set of acceptable arguments. Moreover he may not be interested in learning how to do that but only if it has occurred. It is worth noticing that we are not specifically focusing on persuasion, since these properties do not only concern acceptability of arguments. Hence, works such as [47, 52, 46, 49, 34] that take a game-theoretic and strategical approach of persuasion are particular cases of our framework but which are more focused on the planning aspect of the problem. This is why those approaches are not directly related to our work since our aim is to establish rational properties of argumentation and change.

Necessity of a new language. In belief change theory, change properties are expressed under the form of logical formulae. In order to benefit from the results coming from belief change theory we have defined a specific logical language called YALLA. YALLA is not only able to express information about the structure of an argumentation system but also the relations between sets of arguments and the principles underlying the usual semantics. As far as we know, the languages proposed in the literature do not provide the same expressivity thus they would not have allowed us to obtain the new results presented in this paper, namely the properties concerning acceptance and structure changes.

The paper is organized as follows: in the next section we first explain the basic assumptions governing our approach, then we describe a framework based on abstract argumentation, in which we introduce the notion of universe, the notion of argumentation graph and the notion of operation that an agent can execute on a target argumentation graph. Then we recall the results obtained for characterizing change. In Section 3 we recall the principles of belief change theory and extend classical update postulates in order to be able to constrain transitions. In Section 4, we introduce a new logical language for abstract argumentation in order to describe them, their properties and their evolution (the YALLA language). Then, in Section 5, we show that enforcement is a specific kind of update and we provide particular update properties for change in argumentation that are based on the characterization results. We end the paper by developing an example in Section 6, and by comparing our approach to related works in Section 7.

Note that this paper significantly improves the conference paper [15]; more precisely, a formalization using a more complete logical language is proposed, specific properties playing the role of *postulates for argumentation update* are established and additional results are given together with the proofs of all the propositions (the proofs can be found in Appendix A).

2 Framework

2.1 Working assumptions

In order to avoid any ambiguity, the list below presents the assumptions made in this work.

- (a). We consider that every agent has an argumentation system representing her knowledge. We do not consider how this system is obtained.
- (b). We place ourselves in the context of "public argumentation", that is an argumentative process in which several agents are exchanging arguments and are observed by an audience that will make the final decision based on the exchanged arguments. In particular, agents are not in position to influence directly other agents (since they do not

have access to the argumentation systems of other agents), they are just able to utter arguments publicly⁵ and to reason about the change operations done by the other agents on the public state of the debate.

- (c). By arguing, the agents modify directly a special argumentation system that represents the state of the dialog, called *target system*. This system is empty at the beginning of the dialog and is iteratively modified by the actions of the agents.
- (d). Public argumentation may imply restrictions about what agents are allowed to do (*e.g.* in the context of a supervised dialog). Moreover agents may have preferences over their possible actions.
- (e). The agents have *only* access to two kinds of information: information about the target system and knowledge about their own system. They do not know the system of other agents. However, they have access to what other agents have said through the target system.
- (f). The knowledge of an agent about the target system may be partial since the agents may have doubts about what the other agents might have said.
- (g). We do not consider how the agents revise their own system when they hear new arguments. In particular, we do not address the issue whether an agent is actually persuaded or not.
- (h). We are not restricting ourselves to standard persuasion where each agent has a goal to make a particular argument accepted. Instead, we study the properties that hold after the modification of an argumentation system. Such a study encompasses more properties than acceptability of one argument, since it may concern any structural modification of the target system or any evolution of its acceptable sets of arguments.
- (i). We are not focusing on the practical aspect of how an agent can achieve her goal about the target system, which is related to a planning approach. We propose a study of the properties induced by the operations that can be performed on a target system while respecting some constraints coming from another argumentation system (the one of the

⁵However, they may, or may not, persuade other agents indirectly, as the other agents may revise their argumentation system accordingly to what they observe in the target system (this point is out of the scope of the paper, see item (g) of the Working assumptions).

agent that has performed the operation). Our aim is to reason about the impact of this external change which is related to a belief change approach.

In the remainder of this work, such a setting will typically be exemplified by a trial where two agents, the prosecutor and the lawyer, are modifying a target system representing the current state of a debate. We consider that the jury will use the final state of the debate to decide the culpability of the defendant. This example, together with the framework of abstract argumentation, are presented in the next section.

2.2 Abstract argumentation

Let us consider a set $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ of symbols (denoted by lower case letters) representing a set of arguments and a relation $\mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}}$ on $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \times \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$. The pair $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$, called *universe*, allows us to represent the set of possible arguments together with their interactions, and can be represented graphically. More precisely, $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ represents a set of arguments usable in a given domain. For instance, if the domain is a knowledge base then $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ and $\mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}}$ are the set of all arguments and interactions that may be built from the formulae of the base. In the remainder of this work, we will consider only finite universes, as in the following example borrowed from [12] where we assume that $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ and $\mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}}$ are explicitly provided.

Example 1. During a trial concerning a defendant (Mr. X), several arguments can be involved to determine his guilt. The set of arguments $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ and the relation $\mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}}$ are given below.

a_0	Mr. X is not guilty of premeditated murder of Mrs. X, his wife.
a_1	Mr. X is guilty of premeditated murder of Mrs. X.
a_2	The defendant has an alibi, his business associate has solemnly sworn that he met him at the time of the murder.
a_3	The close working business relationships between Mr. X and his associate induce suspicions about his testimony.
a_4	Mr. X loves his wife so deeply that he asked her to marry him twice. A man who loves his wife cannot be her killer.
a_5	Mr. X has a reputation for being promiscuous.
a_6	The defendant had no interest to kill his wife, since he was not the beneficiary of the huge life insurance she contracted.
a_7	The defendant is a man known to be venal and his "love" for a very rich woman could be only lure of profit.



A new definition of argumentation graph⁶ derives directly from a universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$. It differs slightly from the definition of [31] by the fact that arguments and interactions can be built according to the universe.

Definition 1. An argumentation graph \mathcal{G} on $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$ is a pair $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ where

- $\mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ is the finite set of vertices of \mathcal{G} called "arguments" and
- $\mathcal{R} \subseteq \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}} \cap (\mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A})$ is its set of edges, called "attacks".

The set of argumentation graphs that may be built on the universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$ is denoted by $\Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$. In the following, $x \in \mathcal{G}$, when x is an argument, is a shortcut for $x \in \mathcal{A}$.

Example 2. The prosecutor is trying to make accepted the guilt of Mr. X. She is not omniscient and knows only a subset of the arguments of the universe presented in Example 1 (a subset that is not necessarily shared with

 $^{^{6}}$ In the literature, two different expressions can be indifferently found: "argumentation system" and "argumentation graph". In the following, we use "argumentation graph".

other agents). Moreover, her knowledge being based on the universe, any argument or attack that does not appear in the universe cannot appear in her graph. Here is her argumentation graph (\mathcal{G}_{Pro}):



The prosecutor knows perfectly the current state of the debate, it is represented by the argumentation graph (\mathcal{G}_D). Indeed, she had given the argument a_1 against the argument a_0 by making explicit the attack from a_1 to a_0 , insisting on the fact that Mr. X is more plausibly guilty than innocent inducing a preference on the attack from a_1 to a_0 over the one from a_0 to a_1 (which is thus neglected). The lawyer had answered by uttering a_4 attacking this suspicion of guiltiness:



Notation 1. We denote by $\mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}} = \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}} \cap (\mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A})$ the restriction of $\mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}}$ on \mathcal{A} , i.e. all the attacks concerning arguments of \mathcal{A} that are present in the universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})^7$.

The acceptable sets of arguments ("extensions") are computed using "semantics" based on the following notions:

Definition 2. Given an argumentation graph $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$, let $a \in \mathcal{A}$ and $\mathcal{S} \subseteq \mathcal{A}$

- S attacks a if and only if $\exists x \in S$ such that $x \mathcal{R}a$.
- S is conflict-free if and only if $\nexists a, b \in S$ such that $a\mathcal{R}b$.
- S defends an argument a if and only if S attacks every argument attacking a. The set of the arguments defended by S is denoted by $\mathcal{F}(S)$; \mathcal{F} is called the characteristic function of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$. More generally, Sindirectly defends a if and only if $a \in \bigcup_{i \ge 1} \mathcal{F}^i(S)$.
- S is an admissible set if and only if it is both conflict-free and defends all its elements.

⁷Note that in Definition 1, \mathcal{R} is not necessarily equal to $\mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}}$.

In this article, we only consider the traditional semantics proposed by [31]:

Definition 3 (Acceptability semantics). Given an argumentation graph $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$, let $\mathcal{E} \subseteq \mathcal{A}$,

- \$\mathcal{E}\$ is a complete extension of \$(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})\$ if and only if \$\mathcal{E}\$ is an admissible set and every argument which is defended by \$\mathcal{E}\$ belongs to \$\mathcal{E}\$.
- *E* is a preferred extension of (*A*, *R*) if and only if *E* is a maximal (with respect to set-inclusion ⊆) admissible set.
- *E* is the only grounded extension of (*A*, *R*) if and only if *E* is a minimal (with respect to ⊆) complete extension.
- \mathcal{E} is a stable extension of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if \mathcal{E} is conflict-free and attacks every argument not belonging to \mathcal{E} .

The status of an argument is determined by its presence in the extensions of the selected semantics. For example, an argument is "skeptically accepted" (resp. "credulously") if it belongs to all the extensions (resp. at least to one extension) and is "rejected" if it does not belong to any extension.

2.3 Change in argumentation

In this section we recall the framework of dynamics in argumentation. In this subfield, researchers study the impacts of a *change operation* done by an agent on an argumentation graph, called the *target*.

These impacts could involve the arguments, the extensions, the set or the number of all the extensions, the set of extensions containing a particular argument as well as its cardinality. For instance, an agent might want to check if the accepted arguments remain exactly the same after the change, or if the number of extensions increases after the change.

A particular change, called *enforcement*, has already been studied in the literature. The main references about enforcement are [8, 7] that address the following question: "Is it possible to change a given argumentation graph, by applying change operations, so that a desired set of arguments becomes accepted?" (author?) [7] has specified necessary and sufficient conditions under which enforcements are possible, in the case where change operations are restricted to the addition of new arguments and new attacks.

In another context, Cayrol et al. [22] have distinguished four elementary change operations. An elementary change is either adding/ removing one

argument with a set of attacks involving it, or adding/removing one attack. Note that in [22] and in [13], operations are defined without considering the notions of universe, agent's own argumentation graph and target graph.

Let us develop the interest of studying not only addition of arguments but also removal. Although dynamics of argumentation graphs has been largely explored (see for instance [17, 18, 8, 44]), the removal of an argument has scarcely been mentioned. However, there exist practical applications. First of all, a speaker may need to occult an argument, in particular when she does not want, or is not able, to present this argument in front of a given audience (due to social norms, secrecy, etc.); it is then necessary to know what would happen in the speaker's argumentation graph without this argument. This can be achieved by a removal in her own argumentation graph. In addition, in the case of an "objection", this same audience may force the speaker to remove an argument, in particular when it is regarded as illegal in the context. Moreover, the removal turns out to be useful in order to evaluate a *posteriori* the impact of a precise argument on the output of the argumentation graph. In particular for evaluating the quality of a dialog, it is important to be able to differentiate the unnecessarily uttered arguments from the decisive ones (see [2]: an argument is decisive if its removal makes it possible to change the conclusion of the dialog).

Note that the removal of an argument a cannot always be reduced to the addition of a new argument b attacking a, in particular because it may happen that an attacked argument remains acceptable thanks to the defense mechanism. Hence, it is more economic to remove an argument rather than to add one, which might progressively overload the system.

As a consequence, we propose to extend the approach of [22] and [13] by taking into account the idea of forcing some properties to hold after an operation in order to obtain a kind of "generalized enforcement". More precisely, we introduce a framework where an agent may act on a target argumentation graph. This agent should follow some constraints about the actions she has the right to do. For instance, an agent can only advance arguments that she knows. Hence some restrictions are added on the possible changes that may take place on the graph. These constraints are represented by the notion of *executable operation*.

In Definition 4, we first refine the notion of *elementary operation* within the meaning of [22] in four points:

(a). we give a new syntax for taking into account the universe;

- (b). we define an *allowed operation* with regard to a given agent's knowledge;
- (c). we restrict this notion with regard to its feasibility on the target graph (it is not possible to add an already present argument or to remove an argument which is not in the graph); it leads to the notion of *executable operation*;
- (d). and we study the impact of an operation on an argumentation graph.

Note that considering only elementary operations does not result in a loss of generality since any change can be translated into a sequence of elementary operations.

For the following definitions, we consider a particular universe $\mathbf{U} = (\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}}).$

Definition 4. Let k be an agent and $\mathcal{G}_k = (\mathcal{A}_k, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}_k})$ be her argumentation graph and let $\mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ be an argumentation graph.

- An operation is a tuple o of the form $\langle \oplus, \mathcal{Z}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{Z}} \rangle$ or $\langle \ominus, \mathcal{Z}, \varnothing \rangle$ where $\mathcal{Z} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ and $\mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{Z}} \subseteq \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}}$ and $\forall (x, y) \in \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{Z}}, (x \neq y)$ and $(x \in \mathcal{Z} \text{ or } y \in \mathcal{Z})$.
- An elementary operation is an operation o of the form $\langle \oplus, \mathcal{Z}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{Z}} \rangle$ or $\langle \ominus, \mathcal{Z}, \varnothing \rangle$ where $card(\mathcal{Z}) = 1$. With a slight abuse of notation, an elementary operation will be noted $\langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ or $\langle \ominus, z, \varnothing \rangle$ where $z \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$.
- An elementary operation $\langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ is allowed for k if and only if $z \in \mathcal{A}_k$ and $\mathcal{R}_z \subseteq \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}_k}$.⁸ An elementary operation $\langle \oplus, z, \emptyset \rangle$ is allowed for k if $z \in \mathcal{A}_k$.
- An operation $\langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ is executable by k on \mathcal{G} if it is an operation allowed for k such that $z \notin \mathcal{A}$ and $(\forall (x, y) \in \mathcal{R}_z, x \in \mathcal{A} \text{ or } y \in \mathcal{A})$. An operation $\langle \ominus, z, \varnothing \rangle$ is executable by k on \mathcal{G} if it is an operation allowed for k such that $z \in \mathcal{A}$.
- An operation o = ⟨⊕, z, R_z⟩ executable by k on G provides a new argumentation graph G' = o(G) = (A ∪ {z}, R ∪ R_z), an operation o = ⟨⊖, z, Ø⟩ executable by k on G provides a new argumentation graph G' = o(G) = (A \ {z}, R \ {(x, y) ∈ R | x = z or y = z}).

⁸Note that in the case of an argument addition, it is possible to add an argument with only a part of the known attacks and therefore to "lie by omission".

An extension of \mathcal{G}' will be denoted by \mathcal{E}' .

The first item of Definition 4 implies that z cannot be a self-attacking argument. However, handling this kind of argument may be useful for instance for modeling a situation where an agent uses a questionable argument in order to make another argument undecided. Nevertheless, in the literature of the domain, forbidding self-attacking arguments is usually considered as a realistic constraint: a self-attacking argument is the symptom of a non-sense.⁹

Example 3. From $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ and $\mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}}$ given in Example 1, several elementary operations can be given, e.g., $\langle \oplus, a_2, \{(a_2, a_1)\} \rangle$ and $\langle \oplus, a_4, \varnothing \rangle$.

Among the elementary operations, the prosecutor is only allowed to use those concerning arguments she knows (with regard to \mathcal{G}_{Pro} given in Example 2). For instance, she is allowed to use $\langle \oplus, a_2, \{(a_2, a_1)\}\rangle$, but she is not allowed to use $\langle \oplus, a_5, \{(a_5, a_4)\}\rangle$.

Finally, the prosecutor may execute $\langle \oplus, a_2, \{(a_2, a_1)\} \rangle$ on \mathcal{G}_D , but she may not execute $\langle \oplus, a_7, \varnothing \rangle$ on \mathcal{G}_D , since a_7 is not in \mathcal{G}_D .

2.4 Change characterizations, planning and belief change

A planning problem in argumentation could consider the goals of the agent and how she can act (*i.e.* produce a change) on an argumentation graph. If we want to decide which operation an agent has to perform so that a particular property is satisfied in the resulting graph, a *naive* approach would:

- compute all the operations that are executable by the agent,
- compute the extensions of the argumentation graphs obtained by each of these operations and
- check if the property is satisfied in each graph.

The naive approach is expensive, since it requires to compute the extensions of every graph obtained by an executable operation. Some works aim at addressing this efficiency issue by providing incremental computation of

⁹Note that this restriction is not required for establishing Theorem 3 nor for Propositions 9 and 10. It has been done because all the characterizations that are referred in [14] concern graphs with no self-attacking arguments. Hence an additional study should be necessary in order to propose appropriate characterizations integrating self-attacking arguments.

extensions [5, 6] or by defining strong equivalence classes of argumentation graphs that have the same extensions for any addition of arguments [45].

In this paper, we are interested in *reasoning about change i.e.* knowing the properties that are linked to the modifications of an argumentation graph. To be more efficient this study should find ways to reason about the impact of the operations without computing all the extensions. This can be done by using *change characterizations* which were studied in [22] and [14].¹⁰ In these papers, a typology to classify the different properties describing a change operation has been introduced. This typology considers change at three levels:

- the set of extensions in Dung's sense (*e.g.*, the set of extensions is empty before the change and not empty after the change),
- the sets of accepted arguments (*e.g.*, all the arguments skeptically accepted before the change are still skeptically accepted after the change) and
- the status of some given argument (*e.g.*, an accepted argument may become rejected after the change).

Then [22, 14] provide characterizations for these properties: *i.e.* conditions on the argumentation graph and on the change operation that are necessary and/or sufficient to guarantee that the properties are satisfied. The results are twofold: they can be considered as a guide for selecting the change operation to perform in order to obtain a desired property on an argumentation graph (*e.g.* in a planning perspective) and they may also be used as a tool for predicting the result of a change operation in a given context, or for inferring properties about an initial state given information about the operation performed and the result obtained (in a perspective of reasoning about change).

Since a characterization gives necessary and/or sufficient conditions about change properties with regard to a kind of operation and a given semantics, the characterizations can be used to propose another approach which can be applied both for planning (to achieve a given goal represented by a property) or for reasoning about change (to check if a property holds after an unspecified operation done by an external agent). This approach is able to:

• compute all the operations that are executable by the agent,

 $^{^{10}\}mathrm{See}$ [16] for a tool that uses these characterizations.

- select characterizations that concern the considered property,
- check if one of the executable operations satisfies the conditions of one of the selected characterizations.

If an executable operation satisfies the conditions of a characterization, then it is certain that the associated property is satisfied. In [14], we provide many results concerning the grounded, stable and preferred semantics. Below, we give four examples of characterizations, all concerning the grounded semantics.

Characterization 1 ([14]). Let $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ be an argumentation graph represented by \mathcal{G} , and \mathcal{E} its grounded extension. For any operation o of the form $\langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ executable by an agent on \mathcal{G} , if

- $\forall x \in \mathcal{A} \text{ such that } (x, z) \in \mathcal{R}_z, \exists y \in \mathcal{E} \text{ such that } (y, x) \in \mathcal{R} \text{ and}$
- $\nexists y \in \mathcal{A} \text{ such that } (z, y) \in \mathcal{R}_z$

then $\mathcal{E}' = \mathcal{E} \cup \{z\}$ where \mathcal{E}' denotes the grounded extension of $\mathcal{G}' = o(\mathcal{G})$.

The property involved in this first characterization concerns a kind of "monotony" of the extension. Indeed, if an operation adds an argument z under the grounded semantics, such that z is defended by the current extension and z does not attack any argument, then we know (see Proposition 12.3 of [14]), without any computation, that z will become accepted while being certain that the previously accepted arguments remain accepted after the change.

Characterization 2 ([14]). Let $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ be an argumentation graph represented by \mathcal{G} , and \mathcal{E} its grounded extension. For any operation o of the form $\langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ executable by an agent on \mathcal{G} , for any argument $x \in \mathcal{A} \cup \{z\}$, if

- $\nexists y \in \mathcal{A}$ such that $(y, z) \in \mathcal{R}_z$ and
- $\{z\}$ indirectly defends x and
- $x \notin \mathcal{E}$

then $x \in \mathcal{E}'$ where \mathcal{E}' denotes the grounded extension of $\mathcal{G}' = o(G)$.

This characterization (established by Proposition 15 in [14] ¹¹) concerns "enforcement" of an argument x, as seen in Section 2.3. Like Characterization 1, this characterization also involves the operation of addition of an

¹¹Here we extend the proposition to the case where x = z.

argument z. Thanks to this characterization, we know (without requiring a new computation of the extensions) that if an operation adds an argument z under the grounded semantics, such that z is not attacked and indirectly defends another argument x which was not accepted, then x will become accepted.

Characterization 3 ([14]). Let $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ be an argumentation graph represented by \mathcal{G} , and \mathcal{E} its grounded extension. For any operation $o = \langle \ominus, z, \varnothing \rangle$ executable by an agent on \mathcal{G} , if

- $\mathcal{E} \neq \varnothing$ and
- $\exists x \in \mathcal{A} \text{ such that } (x, z) \in \mathcal{R}$

then $\mathcal{E}' \neq \emptyset$, where \mathcal{E}' denotes the grounded extension of $\mathcal{G}' = o(\mathcal{G})$.

This characterization (established by Proposition 10.1^{\ominus} in [14]) enables us to know, without any computation, that if an operation removes an argument z such that z is attacked by at least one argument of \mathcal{G} and knowing that the extension was not empty before the change, then the extension obtained after the change will not be empty. This can be useful when one wants either to act in order to make sure that the discussion will not be fruitless (planning perspective), or in a perspective of reasoning about change if one wants to know if the discussion is still opened after observing a given operation performed by another agent.

Characterization 4 ([14]). Let $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ be an argumentation graph represented by \mathcal{G} , and \mathcal{E} its grounded extension. For any operation $o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ executable by an agent on \mathcal{G} , if

- $\nexists x \in \mathcal{E}$ such that $(z, x) \in \mathcal{R}_z$ and
- $\exists y \in \mathcal{A} \text{ such that } (y, z) \in \mathcal{R}_z \text{ and } \nexists x \in \mathcal{E} \text{ such that } (x, y) \in \mathcal{R}$

then $\mathcal{E}' = \mathcal{E}$, where \mathcal{E}' denotes the grounded extension of $\mathcal{G}' = o(G)$.

This last characterization (coming from Proposition 12.1 in [14]) concerns the non evolution of the conclusion. Thanks to it, we know (without requiring a new computation of the extensions) that if an operation adds an argument z under the grounded semantics, such that z does not attack any argument of the grounded extension while not being defended by this extension, then the extension will remain the same after the change. In a planning perspective, this result could be useful in situations where it is important to speak but without changing the direction of the debate (for a politician, for instance). **Example 4.** From Example 2, we know that the prosecutor is trying to make accepted the argument a_1 . So she wants to have $a_1 \in \mathcal{E}'$ and she can use Characterization 2. From Example 3, several executable operations are available and among the executable operations, $\langle \oplus, a_7, \{(a_7, a_4)\} \rangle$ satisfies the conditions of Characterization 2. Hence, the prosecutor is certain to achieve her goal if she executes this operation.

Mr. X can also use Characterization 2 after having heard the prosecutor uttering a_7 and attacking a_4 (that had been said previously in the debate). This characterization will help Mr. X to understand that at this stage of the debate his guiltiness is accepted.

The fact that an agent may reason about operations done on an argumentation graph ensuring that a property holds on this graph recalls belief change theory, where an agent has to change her beliefs in order to take into account a new piece of information. Moreover, characterizations are properties about elementary change operations performed on an argumentation system. On the other hand, belief change postulates are properties about a belief change operator applied to a knowledge base. Hence, it seems interesting to draw a parallel between these two domains and to try to use the characterizations as supplementary properties playing the role of additional postulates for an argumentation-specific belief change operator.

To explain this parallel, we briefly recall background on belief change theory in the next section.

3 Belief change theory

In the field of belief change theory, the paper of AGM ([1]) has introduced the concept of "belief revision". Belief revision aims at defining how to integrate a new piece of information into a set of initial beliefs while preserving consistency. Beliefs are represented by sentences of a formal language.

A very important distinction between belief revision and belief update was first established in [56]. The difference is in the nature of the new piece of information: either it is completing the knowledge of the world or it informs that there is a change in the world. More precisely, update is a process which takes into account a physical evolution of the world while revision is a process taking into account an epistemic evolution (*i.e.*, it is the knowledge about the world that is evolving). Considering change in argumentation, we rather face an update problem, since we are studying properties concerning the evolution of an argumentation system (specifically, the target system) due to a change operation executed on it by an agent. Graphs are playing the role of states of the world.¹²

3.1 Classical update postulates

We need to recall some background on belief update. An update operator ([56, 39]) is a function mapping a knowledge base φ , expressed in a propositional logic \mathscr{L} based on a vocabulary V, and a new piece of information $\alpha \in \mathscr{L}$, to a new knowledge base $\varphi \diamond \alpha \in \mathscr{L}$. Here, φ represents knowledge about a system in an initial state and $\varphi \diamond \alpha \in \mathscr{L}$ represents the system after this evolution. Ω denotes the set of all interpretations of \mathscr{L} (states of the world), $[\varphi]$ denotes the set of models of the formula φ ($[\varphi] \subseteq \Omega$). Each state of the world can be described unequivocally thanks to a characteristic formula:

Definition 5. A function $f : \Omega \to \mathscr{L}$ such that $\forall \omega \in \Omega, [f(\omega)] = \{\omega\}$ is a characteristic function for \mathscr{L} . $f(\omega)$ is the characteristic formula associated to ω by f.

Remark 1. The function Φ s.t. $\forall \omega \in \Omega$, $\Phi(\omega) = \bigwedge_{v \in V, \omega \models v} v \land \bigwedge_{v \in V, \omega \models \neg v} \neg v$ is a characteristic function.

The characteristic function mentioned in the above remark will be used in the remainder of this paper.

In belief update, the input α should be interpreted as the projection of the expected effects of some "explicit change", or more precisely, the expected effect of the action "make α true". The key property of belief update is Katsuno and Mendelzon's Postulate **U8** which tells that models of φ are updated independently (contrarily to belief revision). We recall here the postulates of Katsuno and Mendelzon [39]: $\forall \varphi, \psi, \alpha, \beta \in \mathscr{L}$,

U1: $\varphi \diamond \alpha \models \alpha$

U2: $\varphi \models \alpha \implies [\varphi \diamond \alpha] = [\varphi]$

¹²A revision approach would apply to situations in which the agent learns some information about the initial argumentation graph and wants to correct her knowledge about it. This would mean that the argumentation graph has not changed but the awareness of the agent has evolved. See for instance Mr. X's example given in Section 1.

- **U3**: $[\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\alpha] \neq \emptyset \implies [\varphi \diamond \alpha] \neq \emptyset$
- **U4**: $[\varphi] = [\psi]$ and $[\alpha] = [\beta] \implies [\varphi \diamond \alpha] = [\psi \diamond \beta]$
- **U5**: $(\varphi \diamond \alpha) \land \beta \models \varphi \diamond (\alpha \land \beta)$
- **U8**: $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \diamond \alpha] = [(\varphi \diamond \alpha) \lor (\psi \diamond \alpha)]$
- **U9**: if $card([\varphi]) = 1$ then $[(\varphi \diamond \alpha) \land \beta] \neq \emptyset \implies \varphi \diamond (\alpha \land \beta) \models (\varphi \diamond \alpha) \land \beta$ (where card(E) denotes the cardinality of the set $E)^{13}$

These postulates allow Katsuno and Mendelzon to write the following representation theorem concerning update, namely, an operator satisfying these postulates can be defined by means of a ternary preference relation on states of the world (see [39]).

Definition 6. A faithful assignment is a function that associates with each $\omega \in \Omega$ a complete preorder \preceq_{ω} such that $^{14} \forall \omega_1 \neq \omega \in \Omega$, $\omega \prec_{\omega} \omega_1$.

Theorem 1 ([39]). There is an operator $\diamond : \mathscr{L} \times \mathscr{L} \to \mathscr{L}$ satisfying U1, U2, U3, U4, U5, U8, U9 if and only if there is a faithful assignment that associates with each $\omega \in \Omega$ a complete preorder¹⁵, denoted by \preceq_{ω} such that $\forall \varphi, \alpha \in \mathscr{L}, \ [\varphi \diamond \alpha] = \bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} \{ \omega' \in [\alpha] \text{ such that } \forall \omega'' \in [\alpha], \omega' \preceq_{\omega} \omega'' \}.$

This set of postulates has already been broadly discussed in the literature (see *e.g.*, [37, 36, 30]). Two postulates have been particularly criticized: Postulate **U2** imposes inertia (which is not always suitable) and **U3** imposes that any update is always possible (which could also be viewed as a too strong assertion).

In order to answer to these critics, a natural extension is to restrain the possible changes that can be done on a state of the world, and hence give a different definition of update which can take into account some constraints about the possible transitions. Moreover, this extension becomes necessary for us in order to take into account the notion of executable operation in the argumentation framework (let us recall that some operations are not authorized on some argumentation graphs; executable operations are the ones

¹³Note that $card([\varphi]) = 1$ if and only if $\exists \omega \in \Omega$ such that $[\varphi] = \{\omega\}$.

¹⁴Here, and in the rest of this article, \prec is defined classically from \leq as follows: $x \prec y$ iff $(x \leq y \text{ and } y \not\leq x)$

¹⁵Postulates **U6** and **U7** are not considered here since the set **U1-U8** is only related to a family of partial preorders while replacing **U6-U7** by **U9** ensures a family of complete preorders.

that are authorized). Hence, we have chosen to introduce a set of authorized transitions \mathcal{T} which restricts accessible states of the world. Consequently, we have adapted update postulates in order to restrict possible transitions, and to define a representation theorem that allows us to have a complete preorder over the states of the world.

Note that the idea to define an update operator based on a set of authorized transitions was first introduced by Cordier and Siegel [23]. Their proposal goes beyond our idea since they allow for a greater expressivity by using prioritized transition constraints. However, this proposal is only defined at a semantic level (in terms of preorders between states of the world), hence they do not provide postulates nor representation theorem associated with their update operator. In addition, our work generalizes Herzig's approach [36] which proposes to restrict possible updates by taking into account integrity constraints (*i.e.*, formulae that should hold before and after update) since integrity constraints can be encoded with a set of authorized transitions (but the converse is not possible).

3.2 Update postulates respecting transition constraints

In this section, we define new postulates considering constraints on transitions. For that purpose, we first define a new update operator taking into account a set \mathcal{T} of authorized transitions between states of the world.

Definition 7 (Update operator related to \mathcal{T}). Given $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Omega \times \Omega$,

- $\forall \varphi, \psi \in \mathscr{L}$, the pair (φ, ψ) satisfies \mathcal{T} , denoted by $(\varphi, \psi) \models \mathcal{T}$, iff $([\varphi] \neq \emptyset \text{ and } \forall \omega \in [\varphi], \exists \omega' \in [\psi], (\omega, \omega') \in \mathcal{T}).$
- An update operator related to \mathcal{T} , denoted $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$, is a mapping from $\mathscr{L} \times \mathscr{L}$ to \mathscr{L} which associates with any formula φ and any formula α a formula, denoted by $\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha$, such that $(\varphi, \varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$.

In other words, if φ gives information about an initial state of the world then $\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha$ characterizes the states of the world that can be obtained from states satisfying φ by a change belonging to \mathcal{T} .

Now, we define a set of rational postulates for $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$. These postulates aim at translating the idea of update under authorized transitions. Some postulates coming from update are suitable, namely **U1**, since it ensures that after an update the constraints imposed by α hold. **U2** postulate is optional, it imposes that if α already holds in a state of the world then updating α means no change. This postulate imposes inertia as a preferred change, this may not be desirable in all situations. For instance, Dubois et al. [30] proposes to not impose inertia and to allow for update failure even if the formulae are consistent; this has been done by introducing an unreachable world in order to dispose of an upper bound of the proximity from a current world to an unreachable world. **U3** imposes that if a formula holds for some states of the world and if the update piece of information also holds for some state then the result of update should give a non empty set of states. Here, we do not want to impose that any update is always possible since some state of the world may be unreachable from others. So we propose to replace **U3** by a postulate called **E3** based on the set of authorized transitions $\mathcal{T}: \forall \varphi, \psi, \alpha, \beta \in \mathscr{L}$

E3: $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ if and only if $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$.

Due to the definition of $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$, **E3** handles two cases of update impossibility: no possible transition and no state of the world satisfying φ or α , as it will be shown in Proposition 3.

U4 is suitable in our setting since update operators are defined semantically.

U5 is also suitable for update since it says that states of the world updated by α in which β already holds are states in which the constraints α and β are updated. Due to the fact that we wanted to allow for update failure, this postulate has been restricted to "complete" formulae (*i.e.*, such that $card([\varphi]) = 1$):

E5: if $card([\varphi]) = 1$ then $(\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta \models \varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)$.

U8 captures the decomposability of update with respect to a set of possible input states of the world. We slightly change this postulate in order to take into account the possibility of failure, namely if updating something is impossible then updating it on a larger set of states is also impossible, else the update can be decomposable:

E8: if
$$([\varphi] \neq \emptyset$$
 and $[\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$) or $([\psi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\psi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$)
then $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$
else $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [(\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \lor (\psi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha)].$

Postulate **U9** is a kind of converse of **U5**, restricted to a "complete" formula φ . This restriction is required in the proof of Theorem 1 as well as in Theorem 2.

Note that the presence of **U1** in the set of postulates characterizing an update operator is not necessary since **U1** can be derived from **E3**, **E5** and **E8**.

Proposition 1. U1 is implied by E3, E5 and E8.

Using Proposition 1, the following proposition establishes the fact that five postulates are necessary and sufficient to define an update operator, namely E3, U4, E5, E8 and U9.

Proposition 2. E3, U4, E5, E8, U9 constitute a minimal set: no postulate of this set can be derived from the others.

Hence, we get a new set of postulates for update respecting transition constraints:

- **E3**: $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ if and only if $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$
- **U4**: $[\varphi] = [\psi]$ and $[\alpha] = [\beta] \implies [\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [\psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \beta]$
- **E5**: if $card([\varphi]) = 1$ then $(\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta \models \varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)$
- **E8**: if $([\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$) or $([\psi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\psi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$) then $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ else $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \lor (\psi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha)]$
- **U9**: if $card([\varphi]) = 1$ then $[(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta] \neq \emptyset \implies \varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta) \models (\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta$

These postulates allow us to write the following representation theorem concerning update, namely, an update operator satisfying these postulates can be defined by means of the definition of a family of preorders on states of the world.

Definition 8. Given a set $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Omega \times \Omega$ of authorized transitions, an assignment respecting \mathcal{T} is a function that associates with each $\omega \in \Omega$ a complete preorder \preceq_{ω} such that $\forall \omega_1, \omega_2 \in \Omega$, if $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$ and $(\omega, \omega_2) \notin \mathcal{T}$ then $\omega_1 \prec_{\omega} \omega_2$.

Theorem 2. Given a set $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Omega \times \Omega$ of authorized transitions, there is an operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} : \mathscr{L} \times \mathscr{L} \to \mathscr{L}$ satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9** if and only if there is an assignment respecting \mathcal{T} such that $\forall \omega \in \Omega, \forall \varphi, \alpha \in \mathscr{L}$,

(1) $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ if $\exists \omega \in [\varphi]$ such that $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$

(2)
$$[\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} [\Phi(\omega) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \text{ otherwise}$$

$$(3) \ [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \left\{ \omega_1 \in \Omega \middle| \begin{array}{l} \omega_1 \in [\alpha] \ and \\ (\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T} \ and \\ (\forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha] \ such \ that \ (\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2) \end{array} \right\}$$

In other words, (1) and (2) allow us to define the update of a formula φ wrt the update of its individual models, with (1) stating that if one of them cannot be updated the whole update fails, and (2) stating that otherwise the whole update corresponds to the union of the individual updates (an individual update being described by (3)).

This result is a significant headway,¹⁶ but as usual for a representation theorem, it gives only a link between the existence of an assignment of preorders and the fact that an update operator satisfies the postulates. It does not give any clue about how to assign these preorders *i.e.*, how to design precisely an update operator.

Example 5. Let us consider three variables xx, xy and t meaning respectively "Mrs. X is alive", "Mr. X is alive", "Mr. and Mrs. X are together in the same room". Suppose that we know that at a given time point Mr. X is alive (xy), we do not know whether Mrs. X is alive and if they are together. However we know that Mrs. X cannot be alive if they are together, this can be expressed by $\varphi = xy \land (t \to \neg xx)$. It means that among the eight worlds: $w_1 = (xx, xy, t), w_2 = (xx, xy, \bar{t}), w_3 = (xx, \bar{xy}, t), w_4 = (xx, \bar{xy}, \bar{t}), w_5 = (\bar{xx}, xy, t), w_6 = (\bar{xx}, xy, \bar{t}), w_7 = (\bar{xx}, \bar{xy}, t), w_8 = (\bar{xx}, \bar{xy}, \bar{t})$ there are three possible worlds representing the situation: w_2 , w_5 and w_6 (i.e., $[\varphi] = \{\omega_2, \omega_5, \omega_6\}$). We know that some transitions are not possible between two consecutive time points: it is impossible that Mrs. X (respectively Mr. X) rises from the dead, i.e., every transition from $(\bar{xx}, ..., ..)$ to (xx, ..., ..)

A gunshot has been heard and "Mrs. X was found dead". It means that the world has evolved in such a way that xx is false, which can be expressed by $\alpha = \neg xx$. Let us consider a particular assignment satisfying \mathcal{T} with the following preference relations on transitions:

• $\forall i \neq 6, w_6 \prec_{w_5} w_i$: if Mrs. X is dead and Mr. X is alive in the same

¹⁶Note that the condition part in the third item of this theorem could be simplified into: $\omega_1 \in [\alpha]$ and $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$ and $\forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha], \omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2$ by taking into account the constraints on \preceq_{ω} stated in Definition 8. Nevertheless, the current formulation gives a more explicit result.

room, then it is likely that at the next time point Mr. X has left since he does not like to stay with dead people.

- ∀i ≠ 2, w₂ ≺_{w₂} w_i: if Mr. and Mrs. X are alive and not together then it is more plausible that at the next time point it is still the case, otherwise it is more plausible that they met and stay alive than that one of them dies, which in turn is more plausible than both of them died separately and so on¹⁷: w₁ ≺_{w₂} {w₄, w₆} ≺_{w₂} {w₃, w₅, w₇, w₈}.
- ∀i ≠ 6, w₆ ≺_{w₆} w_i: if Mrs. X is dead and Mr. X is alive but elsewhere, then it is more plausible that it is still the case at the next time point.

In that case $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [xy \land (t \to \neg xx) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \neg xx] = \{w_6\}$ since for every $w \in \{w_2, w_5, w_6\}, w_6 \prec_w w' \forall w' \text{ s.t. } w' \models \neg xx \text{ and } (w, w') \in \mathcal{T}.^{18}$

From Theorem 2 we can deduce two simple cases of impossibility: if the initial situation described by φ or the imposed property α are impossible then the update is impossible (this result is a kind of converse of **U3**).

Proposition 3. If $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8** and **U9** then $([\varphi] = \emptyset$ or $[\alpha] = \emptyset) \implies [\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$.

The following property ensures that if an update is possible then a more general update is also possible.

Proposition 4. If $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies **E3** then $([\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset) \implies (\forall \gamma, [\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \lor \gamma)] \neq \emptyset).$

Note that there are some cases where U2 is not required together with E3, U4, E5, E8 and U9. If U2 is imposed then the update operator is associated with a preorder in which a given state is always closer to itself than to any other state of the world. This is why U2 imposes to have a faithful assignment (see Definition 6). In that case, the relation represented by \mathcal{T} should be reflexive.

 $^{^{17}}w_5$ is also considered as less plausible since it would require two steps for passing from w_2 to w_5 namely killing Mrs. X and gathering Mr. X and Mrs. X; moreover we know that Mr. X does not like to be in such an equivocal situation.

¹⁸Note that the reasoning process would have been different if the coroner had discovered that Mrs. X was already dead before the gunshot. This process is a *revision* and would have amount to complete the initial knowledge hence to deduce that at the initial time, only two worlds were possible w_5 and w_6 , denoted $[xy \land (t \to \neg xx) \star \neg xx] = \{w_5, w_6\}$.

Proposition 5. Given a reflexive relation $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Omega \times \Omega$ of authorized transitions, there is an operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} : \mathscr{L} \times \mathscr{L} \to \mathscr{L}$ satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9** that satisfies **U2** if and only if there is a faithful assignment respecting \mathcal{T} defined as in Theorem 2.

If we remove the restriction about authorized transitions then we recover Katsuno and Mendelzon theorem, namely:

Proposition 6. If $\mathcal{T} = \Omega \times \Omega$ then $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies U2, E3, U4, E5, E8, U9 if and only if $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies U1, U2, U3, U4, U5, U8 and U9.

We have seen in the previous sections a framework in which an agent can change an argumentation graph. We have also seen that these notions are close to belief change theory, in particular since we now consider authorized transitions in the context of belief update. To make concrete the parallel between these two domains, in the next section we define a logical language able to express classical notions of abstract argumentation. This new language is introduced in order to be in position to propose an update operator and a set of properties specific to change in abstract argumentation in Section 5.

4 YALLA: logical theory for abstract argumentation graphs

Our purpose is to build a first-order logical theory capable of describing abstract argumentation graphs, especially the attack relation between sets of arguments.

So, we first define a logical language with specific axioms and we show how formulae of the language can be interpreted by argumentation graphs. Then, we slightly modify this logical theory for describing argumentation graphs built on a given universe. Lastly we provide formulae that express the criteria underlying the traditional argumentation semantics.

4.1 The basic language YALLA

The signature of a first-order logical language lays down the set of individual constants (V_{const}) , the set of function symbols (V_f) and the set of predicate symbols (V_P) . The signature Σ of our basic language YALLA is defined as follows:¹⁹

 $^{^{19}\}mathrm{Each}$ function or predicate symbol has an arity which is indicated by an exponent attached to the symbol.

Definition 9 (Signature). $\Sigma = (V_{const}, V_f, V_P)$ where $V_{const} = \{c_{\perp}\}, V_f = \{union^2\}$ and $V_P = \{ \rhd^2, \subseteq^2 \}$.

The terms and formulae of YALLA are built up from the logical symbols (logical connectives, quantifiers and variables) and the symbols in the signature, thanks to the syntactic rules of first-order logic.²⁰

4.1.1 Structure over Σ

We define the semantics of YALLA thanks to a structure, on which terms and formulae will be interpreted. A structure is associated with an argumentation graph $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$. So, the domain of the structure is $\mathcal{D} = 2^{\mathcal{A}}$, the set of sets of arguments, which contains at least the empty set.

Definition 10 (Structure). A structure \mathcal{M} of signature Σ , associated with $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$, is a pair $(\mathcal{D}, \mathcal{I})$ where $\mathcal{D} = 2^{\mathcal{A}}$ is the domain of the structure and \mathcal{I} is an interpretation function associating:

- the empty set to the constant symbol c_{\perp} ,
- the binary set theoretic union operator (function from D² to D) to the function symbol union,
- the binary set theoretic inclusion relation (binary relation on D²) to the predicate symbol ⊆,
- the binary relation of attack between sets of arguments induced by \mathcal{R} ,²¹ and defined by $S_1\mathcal{R}S_2$ if and only if $\exists x_1 \in S_1, \exists x_2 \in S_2, (x_1\mathcal{R}x_2)$, to the predicate symbol \triangleright .

Note that the first two items allow to interpret variable-free terms, and the last two allow to interpret variable-free atomic formulae on a given structure \mathcal{M} . Then, we rely on the Tarski truth definition rules (see for instance [51]) to interpret any closed formula.²² For instance, a formula $\forall x \ \varphi$ (resp. $\exists x \ \varphi$) is interpreted by True on the structure \mathcal{M} if and only if φ is interpreted by True on \mathcal{M} for each (resp. at least one) assignment of an element of \mathcal{D} to the variable x.

 $^{^{20}\}mathrm{The}$ reader is referred to [51] for instance, for a detailed presentation of mathematical logic.

²¹For sake of simplicity, the attack relation between sets of arguments is denoted with the same symbol as the attack relation between arguments.

²²A formula is closed if each variable x of the formula appears in a subformula of the form $\forall x \ (\varphi)$ or $\exists x \ (\varphi)$.

Definition 11 (Model). Let φ be a closed formula of the language. A structure \mathcal{M} is a model of φ , denoted by $\mathcal{M} \models \varphi$, if and only if φ is interpreted by True on the structure \mathcal{M} .

In the following, we will write $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models \varphi$ for $\mathcal{M} \models \varphi$, when \mathcal{M} is associated with $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$. Indeed, in that case, the structure \mathcal{M} is entirely determined by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$.

4.1.2 Specific axioms

Among all the formulae that can be built on the signature Σ , some formulae characterize the structures defined above. We will consider these formulae as the specific axioms of the logical theory describing an abstract argumentation graph. Let x, y, z be variables of YALLA:

Axioms for set inclusion

- $\forall x \ (c_{\perp} \subseteq x)$
- $\forall x \ (x \subseteq x)$
- $\forall x, y, z \ ((x \subseteq y \land y \subseteq z) \implies x \subseteq z).$

Axioms for set operators

- $\forall x, y \ ((x \subseteq union(x, y)))$
- $\forall x, y \ ((y \subseteq union(x, y)))$
- $\bullet \ \forall x,y,z \ (((x \subseteq z) \land (y \subseteq z)) \implies (union(x,y) \subseteq z))) \\$

Axioms combining set-inclusion and attack relation

- $\forall x, y, z \ (((x \rhd y) \land (x \subseteq z)) \implies (z \rhd y))$
- $\forall x, y, z \ (((x \triangleright y) \land (y \subseteq z)) \implies (x \triangleright z))$
- $\forall x, y, z \ ((union(x, y) \triangleright z) \implies ((x \triangleright z) \lor (y \triangleright z)))$
- $\forall x, y, z \ ((x \rhd union(y, z)) \implies ((x \rhd y) \lor (x \rhd z)))$

It is easy to prove that the above axioms hold in any structure \mathcal{M} of signature Σ . For instance, let φ denote the first axiom combining set-inclusion and attack relation. Let \mathcal{M} be any structure of signature Σ . We have to prove that φ is interpreted by True on \mathcal{M} . It holds since for any t_1, t_2, t_3 subsets of $2^{\mathcal{A}}$, if $t_1 \mathcal{R} t_2$ and $t_1 \subseteq t_3$ then $t_3 \mathcal{R} t_2$.

4.2 The language YALLA_U

Now, we propose a first-order logical theory capable of describing abstract argumentation graphs built on a given *finite* universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$, where $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} = \{a_1, a_2, \cdots, a_k\}$ with $k = card(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}})$.

For that purpose, we have to enrich the language. First, the signature must include as many symbols as elements in $2^{\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}}$. As a consequence, the domain of a structure must enable to interpret all these symbols. Then, we must be able to distinguish between all the terms those which can be interpreted on a given argumentation graph based on the universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$. That is the reason why we add the predicate symbol *on*.

The new signature $\Sigma_{\mathbf{U}}$ is defined as follows:

Definition 12 (Signature). $\Sigma_{\mathbf{U}} = (V_{const}, V_f, V_P)$ where $V_{const} = \{c_{\perp}, c_1, \ldots, c_p\}$ with $p = 2^k - 1$, $V_f = \{union^2\}$ and $V_P = \{on^1, \rhd^2, \subseteq^2\}$.

4.2.1 Structure over $\Sigma_{\mathbf{U}}$

The semantics of YALLA_U is defined thanks to a structure over $\Sigma_{\mathbf{U}}$. Such a structure is associated with an argumentation graph $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ built on the universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$. We have $\mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ and $\mathcal{R} \subseteq \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}} \cap (\mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A})$. So, the domain of the structure is $\mathcal{D} = 2^{\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}}$, which is not empty.

Definition 13 (Structure). A structure \mathcal{M} of signature $\Sigma_{\mathbf{U}}$, associated with $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$, is a pair $(\mathcal{D}, \mathcal{I})$ where $\mathcal{D} = 2^{\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}}$ is the domain of the structure and \mathcal{I} is an interpretation function associating:

- (a). a unique element of \mathcal{D} to each constant symbol c_i (in particular the empty set is associated with the constant symbol c_{\perp}),
- (b). the binary set theoretic union operator (function from \mathcal{D}^2 to \mathcal{D}) to the function symbol union,
- (c). the characterization of the subsets of \mathcal{A} to the predicate symbol on: on(S) if and only if $S \subseteq \mathcal{A}$
- (d). the binary set theoretic inclusion relation (binary relation on \mathcal{D}^2) to the predicate symbol \subseteq ,
- (e). the binary relation of attack between sets of arguments induced by \mathcal{R} , and defined by $S_1\mathcal{R}S_2$ if and only if $S_1 \subseteq \mathcal{A}, S_2 \subseteq \mathcal{A}$ and $\exists x_1 \in S_1, \exists x_2 \in S_2, (x_1\mathcal{R}x_2)$, to the predicate symbol \triangleright .

As for the language YALLA, a structure \mathcal{M} over $\Sigma_{\mathbf{U}}$ is entirely determined by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ built on $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$.

For short, in the following, we identify t with the subset of \mathcal{A} which interprets t when t denotes a term of YALLA_U.

Example 6. Let us consider the universe $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} = \{a_1, a_2, a_3\}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}} = \{(a_1, a_2), (a_3, a_2)\}$. Let $(\mathcal{A}_1, \mathcal{R}_1)$ and $(\mathcal{A}_2, \mathcal{R}_2)$ be the two argumentation graphs built on the universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$ defined by: $\mathcal{A}_1 = \{a_1, a_2, a_3\}, \mathcal{R}_1 = \{(a_1, a_2)\}, \mathcal{A}_2 = \{a_1, a_2\}, \mathcal{R}_2 = \{(a_1, a_2)\}.$



(a) Universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$.



(b) Argumentation graph (A_1, R_1) .

(c) Argumentation graph $(\mathcal{A}_2, \mathcal{R}_2)$.

Figure 1: Examples of argumentation graphs

Let φ_1 be the formula on $(\{a_1, a_2, a_3\}) \land (\{a_1\} \rhd \{a_2\})$ and φ_2 the formula on $(\{a_1, a_2\}) \land (\{a_1\} \rhd \{a_2\})$.

We have $(\mathcal{A}_1, \mathcal{R}_1) \models \varphi_1$, $(\mathcal{A}_1, \mathcal{R}_1) \models \varphi_2$, $(\mathcal{A}_2, \mathcal{R}_2) \models \varphi_2$. However $(\mathcal{A}_2, \mathcal{R}_2)$ is not a model of φ_1 , since $\{a_1, a_2, a_3\}$ is not a subset of \mathcal{A}_2 .

Let φ'_2 be the formula on $(\{a_1, a_2\})$. We also have $(\mathcal{A}_2, \mathcal{R}_2) \models \varphi'_2$.

4.2.2 Specific axioms

For describing the structures over $\Sigma_{\mathbf{U}}$ we need all the axioms presented in Section 4.1.2 augmented by the following ones: let x, y, z be variables of YALLA_U,

Axioms for the predicate on

- $on(c_{\perp})$
- $\forall x, y \ ((on(x) \land (y \subseteq x)) \implies on(y))$
- $\forall x, y \ ((on(x) \land on(y)) \implies on(union(x, y))$
- $\forall x, y \ ((x \triangleright y) \implies (on(x) \land on(y)))$

So far, we have proposed a first-order logical theory for describing argumentation graphs built on a given universe $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$. We have proposed an axiomatisation and a semantics. Let $AX_{\mathbf{U}}$ denote the set of the specific axioms given in 4.1.2 expanded by those given above, that is to say the axioms for the predicate *on*, the axioms for set inclusion, the axioms for set operators and the axioms combining set-inclusion and attack relation.

The following results hold:

- The axiomatisation is sound: it is easy to prove that each structure is a model of the axioms
- The axiomatisation is complete in the following sense: Let φ be a formula of the language YALLA_U. Let Sys be a sound and complete axiomatic system for predicate calculus, with its logical axioms and inference rules. We denote by $AX_{\mathbf{U}} \vdash_{Sys} \varphi$ the fact that φ is provable in Sys augmented by the specific axioms of $AX_{\mathbf{U}}$. We recall that $AX_{\mathbf{U}} \models \varphi$ means that φ logically follows from $AX_{\mathbf{U}}$ (or equivalently each structure which is a model of $AX_{\mathbf{U}}$ is also a model of φ). Then it holds²³ that $AX_{\mathbf{U}} \models \varphi$ if and only if $AX_{\mathbf{U}} \vdash_{Sys} \varphi$.

4.2.3 Examples of formulae in $YALLA_U$

In the following, the constant symbols of the language YALLA_U will be denoted by the elements of $2^{\mathcal{A}_{U}}$.

We present several examples illustrating the expressive power of YALLA_U. In particular, we show that we can precisely describe an argumentation graph by its characteristic formula. Moreover, we are able to express knowl-edge held by an agent about an incompletely known argumentation graph.

Definition 14 (Formula describing an argumentation graph). The function $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}$ associated with YALLA_U is defined by:

 $\begin{array}{rcl} \Phi_{\mathbf{U}} : & \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} & \to & YALLA_{\mathbf{U}} \\ & (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) & \mapsto & on(\mathcal{A}) & \wedge & \bigwedge_{x \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \setminus \mathcal{A}} \neg on(\{x\}) \wedge \\ & & & \bigwedge_{(x,y) \in \mathcal{R}} (\{x\} \rhd \{y\}) & \wedge & \bigwedge_{(x,y) \in \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}} \setminus \mathcal{R}} \neg(\{x\} \rhd \{y\}) \\ \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \text{ is called the characteristic formula}^{24} \text{ of the graph } (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}). \end{array}$

Proposition 7. $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ is the unique model of $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$.

 $^{^{23}}$ It is a consequence of the Godel's completeness theorem [51, 41].

²⁴Note that it should not be confused with the characteristic function of an argumentation graph that is used, for instance, for defining the grounded semantics (see Definition 2).
Example 7. Let us consider the argumentation graphs (A_1, \mathcal{R}_1) and (A_2, \mathcal{R}_2) from Example 6. Following Definition 14, we have:²⁵

$$\begin{split} \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{A}_1, \mathcal{R}_1) &= on(\{a_1, a_2, a_3\}) \land (\{a_1\} \rhd \{a_2\}) \land \neg(\{a_3\} \rhd \{a_2\}) \\ \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{A}_2, \mathcal{R}_2) &= on(\{a_1, a_2\}) \land \neg(on(\{a_3\})) \land (\{a_1\} \rhd \{a_2\}) \land \neg(\{a_3\} \rhd \{a_2\}) \end{split}$$

YALLA_U allows us to express incomplete knowledge about $(\mathcal{A}_{U}, \mathcal{R}_{U})$:

Example 8. Let us consider the universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$ given in Figure 2.



Figure 2: Universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$.

Assume that Agent Ag_a has only a partial knowledge about the argumentation graph built by Agent Ag_b . Indeed, Ag_a hesitates between two possible situations for Ag_b 's graph, namely (A_1, \mathcal{R}_1) and (A_2, \mathcal{R}_2) given in Figures 3a and 3b.



Figure 3: Two possible cases for the argumentation graph of Agent Ag_b

The knowledge held by Ag_a can be expressed by the following formula of

²⁵Note that the absence of an attack is expressed only if this attack is in the universe: $\neg(\{a_3\} \triangleright \{a_2\})$ is in $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{A}_1, \mathcal{R}_1)$ since a_3 attacks a_2 in \mathbf{U} , whereas $\neg(\{a_2\} \triangleright \{a_1\})$ is not in $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{A}_1, \mathcal{R}_1)$ since a_2 does not attack a_1 in \mathbf{U} .

 $YALLA_{\mathbf{U}}$:²⁶

 φ has only two models which are exactly the argumentation graphs $(\mathcal{A}_1, \mathcal{R}_1)$ and $(\mathcal{A}_2, \mathcal{R}_2)$.

Note that $\varphi \equiv \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{A}_1, \mathcal{R}_1) \vee \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{A}_2, \mathcal{R}_2).$

4.3 Encoding argumentation semantics

Since we want to use $YALLA_U$ for encoding argumentation semantics, some formulae will be found very often, we propose useful notations for them.

Definition 15. Let t_1 and t_2 be terms of YALLA_U. We define:

$$\begin{split} t_1 &= t_2 \quad \stackrel{def}{\equiv} \quad (t_1 \subseteq t_2) \land (t_2 \subseteq t_1). \\ t_1 &\neq t_2 \quad \stackrel{def}{\equiv} \quad \neg(t_1 = t_2). \\ singl(t_1) \quad \stackrel{def}{\equiv} \quad (t_1 \neq c_\perp) \land \forall t_2 \; (((t_2 \neq c_\perp) \land (t_2 \subseteq t_1)) \implies (t_1 \subseteq t_2)). \end{split}$$

Obviously, $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models singl(t)$ if and only if the term t is interpreted by a singleton of \mathcal{A} .

The next step is to provide formulae that express the criteria underlying the traditional argumentation semantics. Traditional semantics are defined by lists of criteria, based on notions such as conflict-freeness, defense, admissibility for instance. In the following, we encode these notions by appropriate formulae of YALLA_U.

 $^{^{26}}$ It would be possible to find a simpler and logically equivalent formula. Nevertheless, we keep this formulation since it seems more natural and closer to an automatic translation of the graph.

Proposition 8. Let $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ be a set of arguments and $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ be an argumentation graph such that $\mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ and $\mathcal{R} \subseteq \mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A}$. Let t, t_1, t_2, t_3 be terms of YALLA_U. We have:

- t is conflict-free in $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models on(t) \land (\neg(t \triangleright t))$. The latter formula is denoted by F(t).
- t_1 defends each element of t_2 in $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (\forall t_3 \\ ((singl(t_3) \land (t_3 \rhd t_2)) \implies (t_1 \rhd t_3)))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models t_1 \implies t_2$.
- If $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models singl(t_2)$, then t_1 indirectly defends the unique element of t_2 in $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ (which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models t_1 \rightarrowtail t_2$) if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (t_1 \bowtie t_2) \lor (\exists y ((t_1 \bowtie y) \land (y \Join t_2)))).$
- t is admissible in $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (F(t) \land (t \bowtie t))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models A(t)$.
- t is a complete extension of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (A(t) \land \forall t_2 \ ((singl(t_2) \land (t \bowtie t_2)) \implies (t_2 \subseteq t)))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models C(t)$.
- t is the grounded extension of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (C(t) \land \forall t_2 \ (C(t_2) \implies (t \subseteq t_2)))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models G(t)$.
- t is a stable extension of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (F(t) \land \forall t_2 \\ ((singl(t_2) \land \neg(t_2 \subseteq t)) \implies (t \rhd t_2)))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models S(t)$.
- t is a preferred extension of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (A(t) \land \forall t_2 (((t_2 \neq t) \land (t \subseteq t_2)) \implies \neg A(t_2)))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models P(t)$.

Now, using $YALLA_U$, we apply belief update concepts to argumentation.

5 Belief update and argumentation

We have seen in Section 3 that a change operation in argumentation is close to a transition in belief change: an argumentation graph corresponds to a state of the world and an executable operation to an authorized transition. In this section, we propose an update operator and a set of properties specific to change in abstract argumentation. Note that the belief update framework is defined for a propositional logic, whereas YALLA_U is a first-order language. Nevertheless, as the universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$ is finite, each structure that interprets formulae of YALLA_U has a finite domain, so each formula of YALLA_U is equivalent to a propositional combination of variable-free atomic formulae, using only the logical connectives. In the following, quantifiers are kept for the sake of shortness of the notations.

First, we recall some notions and definitions.

- The set of argumentation graphs built on the universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$ is denoted by $\Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$.
- Moreover, for any formula φ of YALLA_U, we denote by $[\varphi]$ the set of models of φ , *i.e.* the set of argumentation graphs such that φ is true in these graphs (see Definition 11). Hence, $[\varphi]$ can be written as $\{\mathcal{G} \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \mid \mathcal{G} \models \varphi\}$.
- $[\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G})] = {\mathcal{G}},$ where $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G})$ is the characteristic formula of the argumentation graph \mathcal{G} (see Proposition 7).
- Finally, $\varphi \models \psi$ means $\forall \mathcal{G} \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$, if $\mathcal{G} \models \varphi$ then $\mathcal{G} \models \psi$, or equivalently $[\varphi] \subseteq [\psi]$.

5.1 Classical belief update in abstract argumentation

Classical belief update ($\dot{a} \ la$ Katsuno-Mendelzon) in an argumentation framework amounts to consider:

- a formula φ in YALLA_U representing a current state of knowledge about exchanged arguments (*i.e.*, it may encompass several possible argumentation systems),
- and a new piece of information α stating that the debate has evolved in such a way that α now holds (*i.e.*, the current state of the debate is inside a set of argumentation systems satisfying α).

Updating φ by α gives a formula $\varphi \diamond \alpha$ that represents the set of argumentation systems that corresponds to an evolution of the debate where a change has been done imposing α . Using Theorem 1, we know that this formula corresponds to some argumentation systems which can be computed thanks to a faithful pre-order.

In the framework described in Section 2.3, an argumentation system can only evolve by an allowed operation made by an agent (according to the agent's own argumentation system and according to her target). This means that some transitions are not allowed. So the update operator given by Definition 7 is required for reasoning about change in this framework.

5.2 Belief update postulates adapted to our argumentation framework

Let $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ representing a set of authorized transitions (for instance, the set of authorized transitions can be defined as in Definition 4). Using YALLA_U, we can express a change respecting \mathcal{T} :

Definition 16 (Change respecting \mathcal{T}). For any φ , ψ in YALLA_U, a change from a set of argumentation graphs satisfying φ to a set of argumentation graphs satisfying ψ is respecting \mathcal{T} , denoted by $(\varphi, \psi) \models \mathcal{T}$, if and only if $([\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $\forall \mathcal{G} \in [\varphi], \exists \mathcal{G}' \in [\psi], (\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}') \in \mathcal{T})$.

In other words, the change is possible if there exists a change from each graph of the first set (which must be non empty) to at least one graph of the second set.

Now, we can define a generalized enforcement operator:

Definition 17 (Generalized enforcement operator related to \mathcal{T}). A generalized enforcement operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ related to \mathcal{T} is a mapping from $YALLA_{\mathbf{U}} \times YALLA_{\mathbf{U}}$ to $YALLA_{\mathbf{U}}$ which associates with any formula φ and any formula α a formula, denoted by $\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha$, such that $(\varphi, \varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$.

In other words, $\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha$ characterizes the argumentation graphs obtained from argumentation graphs satisfying φ through a change respecting \mathcal{T} . The postulates²⁷ defined in Section 3.2 allow us to write the following representation theorem concerning enforcement, namely, an enforcement operator satisfying these postulates can be defined by means of the definition of a family of preorders on argumentation graphs.

- **E5**: if $card([\varphi]) = 1$, then $(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta \models \varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)$.
- **E8**: if $([\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ or $([\psi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$), then $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ else $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [(\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \lor (\psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha)].$

U9: if
$$card([\varphi]) = 1$$
, then $[(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta] \neq \emptyset \implies \varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta) \models (\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta$.

 $^{^{27}}$ Reminder of the postulates defined in Section 3.2:

E3: $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ iff $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$.

U4: $[\varphi] = [\psi]$ and $[\alpha] = [\beta] \implies [\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [\psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \beta].$

Definition 18. Given $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ a set of authorized transitions, an assignment respecting \mathcal{T} is a function that associates with each $\mathcal{G} \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ a complete preorder $\preceq_{\mathcal{G}}$ such that $\forall \mathcal{G}_1, \mathcal{G}_2 \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ if $(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_1) \in \mathcal{T}$ and $(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_2) \notin \mathcal{T}$ then $\mathcal{G}_1 \prec_{\mathcal{G}} \mathcal{G}_2$.

Theorem 3. Given $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ a set of authorized transitions, there exists an operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9** if and only if there is an assignment respecting \mathcal{T} such that $\forall \mathcal{G} \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \varphi, \alpha \in YALLA_{\mathbf{U}}$,

(1) $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ if $\exists \mathcal{G} \in [\varphi]$ such that $[\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$

(2)
$$[\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \bigcup_{\mathcal{G} \in [\varphi]} [\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \text{ otherwise}$$

$$(3) \ [\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \begin{cases} \mathcal{G}_1 \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} & \mathcal{G}_1 \in [\alpha] \text{ and} \\ (\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_1) \in \mathcal{T} \text{ and} \\ (\forall \mathcal{G}_2 \in [\alpha] \text{ such that} (\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \mathcal{G}_1 \preceq_{\mathcal{G}} \mathcal{G}_2) \end{cases}$$

Following this theorem, given \mathcal{G} , α a formula of YALLA_U, and an assignment respecting \mathcal{T} , the formula $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha$ characterizes the closest graphs with regard to \mathcal{G} in which α is satisfied and which are obtained from \mathcal{G} through a transition in \mathcal{T} (where "closest with regard to \mathcal{G} " means minimal with regard to the order $\preceq_{\mathcal{G}}$ defined by the assignment).

Note that the above theorem is only a representation theorem (it is the "argumentation" version of Theorem 2). It does not provide a constructive way to build an assignment respecting the transitions. Nevertheless this result is significant in the sense that it justifies the use of a distance relation for finding the results of an argumentation update, and it explains as in Katsuno-Mendelzon Theorem that the computation of the closest argumentation systems (in the sense of this distance) should be done on each argumentation system representing the initial knowledge. Note also that Postulates E3 to U9 are general enough to characterize any update expressed in a logical language. Hence, they apply to argumentation dynamics in the case where argumentation notions are expressed in a logical framework as, for instance, YALLA. However, they do not give any specific insight about how the particular concepts of argumentation behave in the presence of change. In the next section, we show that characterizations may be considered as properties that refine update operators in the context of argumentation.

5.3 Characterizations as a way to specialize update operators for argumentation

The characterizations presented in Section 2.4 enable us to learn what properties hold on the target graph when one argument is either added or removed. Thanks to YALLA_U and considering an update operator $\diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ that minimizes the changes wrt to addition and removal of arguments, with \mathcal{T} being a set of authorized transitions for a given user (depending on its own knowledge, *i.e.* its own argumentation graph), we are going to translate the characterizations into update properties specific to the argumentation domain. These properties will play the same role as the postulates in belief change theory since they are going to constrain the update operators and the associated family of pre-orders. However they are not called "postulates" since they are proven results that are coming from the argumentation domain.

The characterizations were obtained by the addition (resp. removal) of a single argument. Therefore, if the "nearest" graphs of \mathcal{G} are precisely those obtained by doing only one elementary operation executable on \mathcal{G} (*i.e.* adding or removing one single argument with its interactions and doing nothing else), then an update operator with an assignment complying with this closeness relation will satisfy the conclusion of the characterization. Note that formally the executability of the change depends on the operating agent system (see Definition 4), but, in this section, in order to simplify the notations we consider that the agent that acts on the target is fixed.

First, we are going to define the elementary transitions corresponding to elementary operations executable by the agent.

Definition 19 (Executable elementary transition set). The set of executable elementary transitions, denoted \mathcal{T}_e , is defined by $T_e = \mathcal{T}_+ \cup \mathcal{T}_$ where

$$\mathcal{T}_{+} = \begin{cases} (\mathcal{G}_{1}, \mathcal{G}_{2}) \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} & \exists z \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \text{ and } \mathcal{R}_{z} \subseteq \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}} \text{ such that } o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_{z} \rangle \\ \text{is an elementary operation executable by the} \\ \text{agent on } \mathcal{G}_{1} \text{ and } \mathcal{G}_{2} = o(\mathcal{G}_{1}) \end{cases}$$

is the set of transitions corresponding to an elementary executable addition, and

$$\mathcal{T}_{-} = \begin{cases} (\mathcal{G}_1, \mathcal{G}_2) \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} & \exists z \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \text{ such that } o = \langle \ominus, z, \varnothing \rangle \text{ is an elementary} \\ operation \text{ executable by the agent on } \mathcal{G}_1 \text{ and} \\ \mathcal{G}_2 = o(\mathcal{G}_1) \end{cases}$$

is the set of transitions corresponding to an elementary executable suppression. The proposition below is a kind of "argumentation update property builder", since for every result already established by a characterization we can build an associated generalized enforcement property provided that the chosen operator always prefers elementary changes to more complex ones.

Proposition 9. Given a set of authorized transitions $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ such that²⁸ $\mathcal{T}_e \subseteq \mathcal{T}$, for any characterization C of the form:

"If $\mathcal{G} \models \gamma_1$ and $\exists z, \mathcal{R}_z$ such that $o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ is executable by the agent on \mathcal{G} and $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \alpha_z$ then $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_2$ ",

it holds that every assignment respecting \mathcal{T} and \mathcal{T}_e allows us to define a generalized enforcement operator $\diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ in the same way as in Theorem 3 satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9** and the additional property

$$\begin{array}{ll} \boldsymbol{A}_{C} \colon & \forall \mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}} \subseteq \mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A}, \forall z \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \setminus \mathcal{A}, \\ & \forall \mathcal{R}_{z} \subseteq (\{z\} \times \mathcal{A}) \cup (\mathcal{A} \times \{z\}), \\ let & \mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}}) \text{ and } o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_{z} \rangle, \\ if & \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_{1} \text{ and } (\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}_{e} \text{ and } \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(o(\mathcal{G})) \models \alpha_{z} \\ then & \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (on(z) \wedge \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_{z}}) \models \gamma_{2}. \end{array}$$

$$where \ \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z} = \bigwedge_{(x,y)\in\mathcal{R}_z} (x \vartriangleright y) \land \bigwedge_{x\in\mathcal{G}|(x,z)\not\in\mathcal{R}_z} \neg(x \vartriangleright z) \land \bigwedge_{y\in\mathcal{G}|(z,y)\not\in\mathcal{R}_z} \neg(z \vartriangleright y) \land (x \lor y) \land (x \lor$$

y) is a formula that describes the attacks that are in \mathcal{R}_z and that excludes any other attack concerning z.

Remark 2. The additional property A_C induces a new constraint on the assignment: each pre-order of the assignment should be refined in order to prefer elementary executable changes (in \mathcal{T}_e) in addition to the preferences on transitions satisfying \mathcal{T} . More precisely elementary changes should be preferred to non elementary changes and among the non elementary changes those in \mathcal{T} are preferred to those outside of \mathcal{T} .

Let us illustrate this "meta-proposition" with Characterization 1 given in Section 2.4. Characterization 1 states that if p is the grounded extension of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$, then all the graphs which are obtained from \mathcal{G} by adding only z

 $^{{}^{28}\}mathcal{T}_e \subseteq \mathcal{T}$ means that the elementary operations that are executable should be authorized, *i.e.* included in the set of authorized transitions. Moreover, the inclusion of \mathcal{T} into $\Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ implies that $\mathcal{R}_A \subseteq \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}}$ and $\mathcal{R}_z \subseteq \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}}$. Note however that, since characterizations concern any argumentation graphs, this property would hold with any transition set \mathcal{T} that contains at least all the transitions that add or remove one argument.

and attacks involving z, such that z does not attack \mathcal{G} and p defends z, have $p \cup \{z\}$ as grounded extension.

Using YALLA_U, the sufficient conditions expressed in Characterization 1 can be encoded by the following formula related to two terms z and p denoting two subsets of $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$:

$$\Phi^{1}_{z,p} = (singl(z) \land (p \bowtie z) \land \neg (\exists t \ on(t) \land (z \bowtie t)))$$

Moreover, the assertion "the set p is the grounded extension of \mathcal{G} " can be expressed by $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models G(p)$ in YALLA_U. Characterization 1 can be written as follows: $\forall p$, if $\mathcal{G} \models G(p)$ and $\exists z, \mathcal{R}_z$ such that $o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ is executable by the agent on \mathcal{G} and $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \Phi_{z,p}^1$ then $o(\mathcal{G}) \models G(union(p, z))$.

The corresponding update property is:

$$\begin{split} \mathbf{A}_{C1} : & \forall \mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}} \subseteq \mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A}, \forall z \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \setminus \mathcal{A}, \\ & \forall \mathcal{R}_{z} \subseteq (\{z\} \times \mathcal{A}) \cup (\mathcal{A} \times \{z\}), \\ \text{let} & \mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}}) \text{ and } o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_{z} \rangle, \\ & \forall p, \text{ if} & \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models G(p) \text{ and } (\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}_{e} \text{ and } \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(o(\mathcal{G})) \models \Phi_{z,p}^{1} \\ \text{then} & \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (on(z) \wedge \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_{z}}) \models G(union(p, z)). \end{split}$$

Due to Proposition 9, an operator $\diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies the property \mathbf{A}_{C1} if $\diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ is defined as in Theorem 3 from an assignment such that the closest graphs which are obtained from a graph \mathcal{G} using a transition in \mathcal{T} are exactly the graphs obtained from \mathcal{G} by executing an elementary executable addition.

Proposition 9 enables us to show a similar result concerning Characterization 2 which states that: if an operation adds an argument z, such that z is not attacked and indirectly defends another argument x which was not accepted under the grounded semantics, then x will become accepted under the grounded semantics.

Let $\Phi_{z,x}^2 = (singl(z) \land \neg (\exists t \ on(t) \land (t \rhd z)) \land (z \Join x))$.²⁹ Characterization 2 can be written as follows: $\forall x, \forall p, \text{ if } \mathcal{G} \models G(p) \land singl(x) \land \neg (x \subseteq p)$ and $\exists z, \mathcal{R}_z$ such that $o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ is executable by the agent on \mathcal{G} and $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \Phi_{z,x}^2$ then $\exists p'$ such that $o(\mathcal{G}) \models G(p') \land (x \subseteq p')$.

²⁹Note that $\Phi_{z,x}^2 \models on(x)$.

The corresponding update property is:

$$\begin{aligned} \mathbf{A}_{C2} &: \quad \forall \mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}} \subseteq \mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A}, \forall z \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \setminus \mathcal{A}, \\ & \forall \mathcal{R}_{z} \subseteq (\{z\} \times \mathcal{A}) \cup (\mathcal{A} \times \{z\}), \\ \text{let} & \mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}}) \text{ and } o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_{z} \rangle, \\ & \forall p, x, \text{ if } & \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models G(p) \wedge singl(x) \wedge \neg (x \subseteq p) \text{ and } (\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}_{e} \text{ and} \\ & \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(o(\mathcal{G})) \models \Phi_{z,x}^{2} \\ \text{then} & \exists p', \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (on(z) \wedge \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_{z}}) \models G(p') \wedge (x \subseteq p'). \end{aligned}$$

Similarly, Characterization 4 given in Section 2.4 can be taken into account. This characterization states that if p is the grounded extension of \mathcal{G} then all the graphs which are obtained from \mathcal{G} by adding only an argument z and a set of attacks involving z, such that z does not attack p and p does not defend z, have p as the grounded extension.

Let $\Phi_{z,p}^4 = (singl(z) \land \neg(z \rhd p) \land \neg(p \bowtie z))$. Characterization 4 can be translated into YALLA_U as follows: $\forall p$, if $\mathcal{G} \models G(p)$ and $\exists z, \mathcal{R}_z$ such that $o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ is executable by the agent on \mathcal{G} and $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \Phi_{z,p}^4$ then $o(\mathcal{G}) \models G(p)$.

The above proposition allows us to deduce a new property for a generalized enforcement operator, namely:

\mathbf{A}_{C4} :	$\forall \mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}} \subseteq \mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A}, \forall z \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \setminus \mathcal{A},$
	$\forall \mathcal{R}_z \subseteq (\{z\} \times \mathcal{A}) \cup (\mathcal{A} \times \{z\}),$
let	$\mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}}) \text{ and } o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle,$
$\forall p, \text{ if }$	$\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models G(p) \text{ and } (\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}_e \text{ and } \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(o(\mathcal{G})) \models \Phi^4_{z,p}$
then	$\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (on(z) \land \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z}) \models G(p).$

Below, we establish a proposition similar to Proposition 9 in the case of removal.

Proposition 10. Given a set of authorized transitions $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ such that $\mathcal{T}_e \subseteq \mathcal{T}$, for any characterization C of the form:

"If
$$\mathcal{G} \models \gamma_1$$
 and $\exists z \text{ such that } o = \langle \ominus, z, \varnothing \rangle$ is executable by the agent on \mathcal{G} and $\mathcal{G} \models \alpha_z$ then $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_2$ ",

it holds that every assignment respecting \mathcal{T} and \mathcal{T}_e allows us to define a generalized enforcement operator $\diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ in the same way as in Theorem 3 satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9** and the additional property

$$\begin{array}{lll} \boldsymbol{A}_{C} \colon & \forall \mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}} \subseteq \mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A}, \forall z \in \mathcal{A}, \\ & let & \mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}}) \ and \ o = \langle \ominus, z, \varnothing \rangle, \\ & if & \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_{1} \ and \ (\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}_{e} \ and \ \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models \alpha_{z} \\ & then & \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \neg on(z) \models \gamma_{2} \end{array}$$

Remark 3. Note that while Proposition 9 and Proposition 10 seem alike, they reflect the difference between the operations of addition and removal of an argument. Thus, the additional property is different in these propositions, which is due in particular to the set of attacks to consider in case of addition. Another difference between Proposition 9 and Proposition 10 is the fact that α_z is not satisfied by the same graph $(\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(o(\mathcal{G})) \models \alpha_z)$ in Proposition 9 and $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models \alpha_z$ in Proposition 10).

An example of update property obtained from a removal characterization is the one corresponding to Characterization 3 given in Section 2.4 saying that if an operation removes an argument z such that z is attacked by at least one argument of \mathcal{G} and knowing that the extension was not empty before the change, then the extension obtained after the change will not be empty.

Let $\Phi_z^3 = (singl(z) \land (\exists t \ on(t) \land (t \rhd z)))$. Characterization 3 can be translated into YALLA_U as follows: $\forall p$, If $\mathcal{G} \models G(p) \land \neg (p \subseteq c_{\perp})$ and $\exists z$ such that $o = \langle \ominus, z, \varnothing \rangle$ is executable by the agent on \mathcal{G} and $\mathcal{G} \models \Phi_z^3$ then $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \exists p', G(p') \land \neg (p' \subseteq c_{\perp}).$

The above proposition allows us to deduce a new property for a generalized enforcement operator, namely:

\mathbf{A}_{C3} :	$\forall \mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}} \subseteq \mathcal{A} imes \mathcal{A}, \forall z \in \mathcal{A},$
let	$\mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}}) ext{ and } o = \langle \ominus, z, \varnothing \rangle,$
$\forall p, \text{ if }$	$\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models G(p) \land \neg(p \subseteq c_{\perp}) \text{ and } (\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}_e \text{ and } \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models \Phi_z^3$
then	$\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \neg on(z) \models \exists p', G(p') \land \neg (p' \subseteq c_{\perp}).$

In this way, all characterizations about elementary changes that had been already established (see for instance [14]) can be written as properties of a generalized enforcement operator. These properties hold for any operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ preferring elementary changes (see examples in Section 6).

Remark 4. Note that these additional properties are not designed specifically for computing the minimal operations to do in order to achieve a given goal but they are properties that are specific for argumentation update operators and that can be used to establish properties about elementary changes. However, even if they were not designed to this end, the characterizations have been used in a tool that computes the operations satisfying a goal (see [16]).

5.4 Particular cases of generalized enforcement operators

A first idea is to define an operator that minimizes the changes in terms of removal or addition of arguments in the target graph. It corresponds to an operator that minimizes the Hamming distance between the worlds wrt the predicate *on*. The operator \diamondsuit^{on} is the operator associated to the assignment that gives the preorders \preceq^{on}_{G} such that

$$\mathcal{G}_1 \preceq^{on}_{\mathcal{G}} \mathcal{G}_2 \text{ iff } dist_{on}(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_1) \leq dist_{on}(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_2)$$

where

$$dist_{on}(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}') = card\left(\left\{x \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \middle| \begin{array}{c} \mathcal{G} \models on(x) \text{ and } \mathcal{G}' \models \neg on(x), \\ \text{or } \mathcal{G} \models \neg on(x) \text{ and } \mathcal{G}' \models on(x) \end{array}\right\}\right)$$

Proposition 11. \Diamond^{on} satisfies all the update properties.

A second idea is to define an operator that minimizes the changes on the attacks.

As in the previous paragraph, we can define the operator \diamondsuit^{att} based on the distance $dist_{att}$ defined by:

$$dist_{att}(\mathcal{G},\mathcal{G}') = card\left\{ (x,y) \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \times \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \middle| \begin{array}{c} \mathcal{G} \models att(x,y) \text{ and } \mathcal{G}' \models \neg att(x,y), \\ \text{or } \mathcal{G} \models \neg att(x,y) \text{ and } \mathcal{G}' \models att(x,y) \end{array} \right\}$$

with $att(x, y) \equiv singl(x) \land singl(y) \land (x \triangleright y)$ is a shortcut for expressing that the argument x attacks the argument y.

Note that it is a generalized enforcement operator but some characterization properties may not hold for this operator since the assignment of \leq^{att} is not necessarily preferring elementary changes. This kind of enforcement operator has been used by Baumann [8, 7] with a restricted set of authorized transitions (in Section 7 we show that Baumann's normal enforcement operator is a particular update operator). Other examples of generalized enforcement operators can be defined on preference relations that take into account preferences on arguments to remove/add or relations that prefer addition wrt to removal; moreover instead of counting the number of attacks or arguments that differ it is possible to define an operator based on set-inclusion. Another operator \Diamond^{dist} could be defined on the basis of distances between graphs taking into account the different status that each argument has in each graph. In that case, $\preceq_{\mathcal{G}}^{dist}$ would be based on $dist(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_1)$ which measures the number of arguments that do not have the same status in \mathcal{G} and \mathcal{G}_1 for a given semantics. This operator could represent the reluctance of an agent to change her mind about arguments statuses. So the lawyer could consider that it is less problematic to use many new arguments/attacks to ensure that the argument "Mr. X is not guilty" is accepted, provided that the change on argument acceptance is minimal.

In the next section, we give a practical example in which some generalized enforcement operators are exemplified.

6 Trial example

In this section, we give an example of how YALLA can be used. More precisely, we consider the context of the previous examples, that is to say during a trial; Figure 4 recalls the universe of arguments used by the participants. We are considering the reasoning done by Mr. X while attending the trial concerning his own sad case.



Figure 4: Universe $(\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathbf{U}})$.

6.1 Prosecutor turn

First, we are interested in a turn of the prosecutor. The state of the debate is described by the argumentation graph given by Figure 5.



Figure 5: System representing the debate \mathcal{G}_D .

Formula representing the debate Thanks to $YALLA_U$ and following Definition 14, we are able to represent the debate graph with regard to the universe.

$$\begin{split} \varphi &= on(\{a_0, a_1, a_4\}) \land \neg(on(\{a_2\}) \land \neg(on(\{a_3\}) \land \\ \neg(on(\{a_5\}) \land \neg(on(\{a_6\}) \land \neg(on(\{a_7\}) \\ (\{a_4\} \rhd \{a_1\}) \land (\{a_1\} \rhd \{a_0\}) \land \\ \neg(\{a_0\} \rhd \{a_1\}) \land \neg(\{a_3\} \rhd \{a_2\}) \land \neg(\{a_2\} \rhd \{a_1\}) \land \\ \neg(\{a_5\} \rhd \{a_4\}) \land \neg(\{a_6\} \rhd \{a_1\}) \land \neg(\{a_7\} \rhd \{a_4\}) \\ \end{split}$$
Note that φ is exactly $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}_D)$.

Authorized transitions for the prosecutor As any agent, the prosecutor is not allowed to object against arguments that have not been uttered and she is not able to add arguments that she does not know. Moreover, the judge has allowed very short interventions for each participant. Hence, the prosecutor can only use operations that correspond to the set of transitions denoted \mathcal{T}_e in Definition 19.

Assignment of Mr. X about the prosecutor Mr. X thinks that the addition of an argument is as plausible as its removal. So he uses an assignment respecting \mathcal{T}_e but with no other refinement.

Mr. X's knowledge about the prosecutor's argumentation graph is given by Figure 6.



Figure 6: System of the prosecutor \mathcal{G}_{Pro} .

Thanks to Mr. X's assignment, we are able to represent the more plausible graphs that can be reached after the prosecutor intervention. Table 1 shows these graphs ranked by plausibility.

$(\ominus, a_0, arnothing)(\mathcal{G}_D)$	$(\ominus, a_1, \varnothing)(\mathcal{G}_D)$
$(\ominus, a_4, arnothing)(\mathcal{G}_D)$	$(\oplus, a_2, \{(a_2, a_1)\})(\mathcal{G}_D)$
$(\oplus, a_7, \{(a_7, a_4)\})(\mathcal{G}_D)$	
$(\ominus, a_2, arnothing)(\mathcal{G}_D)$	$(\ominus, a_7, arnothing)(\mathcal{G}_D)$
$(\oplus, a_4, \{(a_4, a_1)\})(\mathcal{G}_D)$	$(\oplus, a_5, \{(a_5, a_4)\})(\mathcal{G}_D)$
$(\oplus, \{a_2, a_7\}, \{(a_2, a_1), (a_7, a_4)\})(\mathcal{G}_D)$	$(\oplus, \{a_5, a_7\}, \{(a_5, a_4), (a_7, a_4)\})(\mathcal{G}_D)$

Table 1: The most plausible reachable graphs after the prosecutor intervention are in the first layer, the least plausible ones (that are also the graphs to which the transitions are not authorized) are in the second layer.

Goal of the prosecutor and update The prosecutor wants to make accepted the argument representing the guilt of the defendant; her goal is $\exists p, G(p) \land (\{a_1\} \subseteq p)$. Hence, Mr. X may want to know what would be the state of the debate if the prosecutor utters something, and Mr. X perfectly knows that whatever the prosecutor may say, this would be said in a way to achieve her goal. It means that Mr. X wants to compute the set of graphs that satisfy the prosecutor's goal and that are accessible from \mathcal{G}_D by a most plausible elementary change:

$$[\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}_D) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}_e} (\exists p, G(p) \land (\{a_1\} \subseteq p))]$$

If we compute the extensions of the most preferred graphs of Table 1 we can find two transitions that achieve the goal: $(\ominus, a_4, \emptyset)$ and $(\oplus, a_7, \{(a_7, a_4)\})$.

In order to avoid the computation of the extensions of each graph, Mr. X may just want to check if the prosecutor would have had some interest to add a particular argument, for instance a_7 . Hence, Mr. X wants to compute the set of graphs containing a_7 and the attack (a_7, a_4) that are accessible from \mathcal{G}_D by a most plausible change:

$$[\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}_D) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}_e} (on(\{a_7\}) \land (\{a_7\} \rhd \{a_4\}))]$$

Using update property \mathbf{A}_{C2} with $z = \{a_7\}, \mathcal{R}_z = \{(a_7, a_4)\}, x = \{a_1\}$ and $p = \{a_0, a_4\}$, and knowing that the following properties hold:

- $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}_D) \models G(p) \land singl(\{a_1\}) \land \neg(\{a_1\} \subseteq p),$
- $(\mathcal{G}_D, \langle \oplus, a_7, \{(a_7, a_4)\}\rangle(\mathcal{G}_D)) \in \mathcal{T}_e$ and

• $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\langle \oplus, a_7, \{(a_7, a_4)\}\rangle(\mathcal{G}_D)) \models singl(\{a_7\}) \land \neg(\exists t(on(t) \land (t \rhd \{a_7\}))) \land$ $(\{a_7\} \triangleright \rightarrow \{a_1\})),$

we obtain:

$$\exists p', \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}_D) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}_e} (on(\{a_7\}) \land (\{a_7\} \rhd \{a_4\})) \models G(p') \land (\{a_1\} \subseteq p')$$

Then, it is not necessary to compute the grounded extension of the graph with the addition of a_7 since, thanks to Property \mathbf{A}_{C2} , we are sure that a_1 will be in the extension after the change.

6.2Lawyer turn

After quite a heated duel between the two opponents that gave rise to several new arguments, it is again the turn of the lawyer. Mr. X is sure that Arguments a_3 and a_7 have been enunciated, and consequently he added them to his representation of the current state of the debate, but he is not so sure that Argument a_2 has really been expressed clearly. As a result, he hesitates between the two argumentation graphs presented in Figure 7 for representing the current state of the debate.



Figure 7: Two possible cases for the debate according to Mr. X.

Formula representing the debate The doubt of Mr. X about the presence of a_2 can be represented in YALLA_U by:

$$\begin{split} \varphi &= on(\{a_0, a_1, a_3, a_4, a_7\}) & \land \\ \neg(on(\{a_5\})) & \land & \neg(on(\{a_6\})) & \land \\ (\{a_1\} \triangleright \{a_0\}) & \land & (\{a_4\} \triangleright \{a_1\}) & \land & (\{a_7\} \triangleright \{a_4\}) & \land \\ \neg(\{a_0\} \triangleright \{a_1\}) & \land & \neg(\{a_5\} \triangleright \{a_4\}) & \land & \neg(\{a_6\} \triangleright \{a_1\}) & \land \\ (\neg(on(\{a_2\})) & \land & \neg(\{a_2\} \triangleright \{a_1\}) & \land & \neg(\{a_3\} \triangleright \{a_2\})) \\ & & \lor \\ (on(\{a_2\}) & \land & (\{a_2\} \triangleright \{a_1\}) & \land & (\{a_3\} \triangleright \{a_2\})) \\ & & \lor \\ Note that \varphi = (\Phi_{U}(\mathcal{G}_{D1}) \lor \Phi_{U}(\mathcal{G}_{D2})) \end{split}$$

Note that $\varphi \equiv (\Psi \mathbf{U}(\mathbf{9}_{D1}) \vee \Psi \mathbf{U}(\mathbf{9}_{D2}))$

Assignment of Mr. X about the lawyer Mr. X thinks that the lawyer prefers addition over removal and elementary changes over non elementary changes; hence, for the lawyer he uses the following assignment:

 $\forall \mathcal{G} \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \mathcal{G}_i \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \mathcal{G}_k \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \setminus \mathcal{G},$

- if $(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_i) \in \mathcal{T}_+$ and $(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_k) \in \mathcal{T}_-$, then $\mathcal{G}_i \prec_{\mathcal{G}}^{Law} \mathcal{G}_k$
- else, if $(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_i) \in \mathcal{T}_e$ and $(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_k) \notin \mathcal{T}_e$, then $\mathcal{G}_i \prec_{\mathcal{G}}^{Law} \mathcal{G}_k$.

Moreover Mr. X thinks that the system presented in Figure 8 is the lawyer's system. 30



Figure 8: System of the lawyer \mathcal{G}_{Law} .

According to Mr. X's assignment for the lawyer, the most plausible graphs reachable after the lawyer intervention can be represented in Table 2.

$(\oplus, a_2, \{(a_2, a_1)\})(\mathcal{G}_{D1})$	$(\oplus, a_2, \{(a_2, a_1), (a_3, a_2)\})(\mathcal{G}_{D1})$
$(\oplus,a_5,\{(a_5,a_4)\})(\mathcal{G})$	$(\oplus,a_6,\{(a_6,a_1)\})(\mathcal{G})$
$(\ominus, a_0, arnothing)(\mathcal{G})$	$(\ominus, a_1, arnothing)(\mathcal{G})$
$(\ominus, a_3, arnothing)(\mathcal{G})$	$(\ominus, a_4, arnothing)(\mathcal{G})$
$(\ominus, a_7, arnothing)(\mathcal{G})$	
$(\oplus, a_2, \{(a_2, a_1)\})(\mathcal{G}_{D2})$	$(\oplus, a_2, \{(a_2, a_1), (a_3, a_2)\})(\mathcal{G}_{D2})$
$(\ominus, a_2, arnothing)(\mathcal{G})$	$(\ominus, a_5, arnothing)(\mathcal{G})$
$(\oplus, a_4, \{(a_4, a_1)\})(\mathcal{G})$	$(\oplus, \{a_2, a_6\}, \{(a_2, a_1), (a_6, a_1)\})(\mathcal{G})$
$(\ominus, \{a_3, a_4\}, arnothing)(\mathcal{G})$	

Table 2: Most plausible graphs reachable after the lawyer intervention, in descending order (the first layer gathers the most preferred graphs, the second layer concerns less preferred graphs and the third one concerns graphs that are not accessible by an authorized transition). Note that $\mathcal{G} \in \{\mathcal{G}_{D1}, \mathcal{G}_{D2}\}$.

 $^{^{30}{\}rm Here},$ at this moment, the lawyer graph is the universe. This means that the lawyer knows all the arguments of this case.

Goal of the lawyer and update Mr. X knows that the lawyer wants to make accepted the argument representing his innocence; her goal is $\exists p, G(p) \land (\{a_0\} \subseteq p)$ and Mr. X would like to compute what would happen after his lawyer's intervention (without knowing exactly what she is going to say but knowing perfectly that his lawyer is brillant and would do anything to prove his innocence):

$$[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}_e} (\exists p, G(p) \land (\{a_0\} \subseteq p))]$$

Note that since φ represents two argumentation graphs, we can use Postulate **E8**; we obtain:

$$[\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}_{D1}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}_{e}} (\exists p, G(p) \land (\{a_{0}\} \subseteq p))] = \begin{cases} (\oplus, a_{2}, \{(a_{2}, a_{1})\})(\mathcal{G}_{D1}), \\ (\oplus, a_{6}, \{(a_{6}, a_{1})\})(\mathcal{G}_{D1}) \end{cases}$$

$$\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}_{D2}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}_e} (\exists p, G(p) \land (\{a_0\} \subseteq p))] = \left\{ (\oplus, a_6, \{(a_6, a_1)\})(\mathcal{G}_{D2}) \right\}$$

Hence,

$$[\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}_e} (\exists p, G(p) \land (\{a_0\} \subseteq p))] = \left\{ \begin{array}{l} (\oplus, a_2, \{(a_2, a_1)\})(\mathcal{G}_{D1}), \\ (\oplus, a_6, \{(a_6, a_1)\})(\mathcal{G}_{D1}), \\ (\oplus, a_6, \{(a_6, a_1)\})(\mathcal{G}_{D2}) \end{array} \right\}$$

Figure 9 shows the result of the update of φ by $(\exists p, G(p) \land (\{a_0\} \subseteq p))$ in terms of graphs.

Moreover, as done during the turn of the prosecutor, Mr. X may again avoid the computation of the extensions and can just check if the addition of a_6 is relevant for his lawyer's goal.

Using Property \mathbf{A}_{C2} with $z = \{a_6\}, \mathcal{R}_z = \{(a_6, a_1)\}, x = \{a_0\}$ and $p = \{a_1, a_3, a_7\}$, we obtain:

$$\exists p', \varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}_e} (on(a_6) \land (a_6 \rhd a_1)) \models G(p') \land (a_0 \subseteq p')$$

Here again, it is not necessary to compute the extension of the graph with the addition of a_6 since we know that a_0 will be in the extension after the change, thanks to \mathbf{A}_{C2} .

7 Related work

In this section, we review related works that either address the enforcement issue, or address change in argumentation within a logical setting.



Figure 9: The three possible graphs obtained after the update.

Enforcement/update The main references about the particular goal of *enforcement* are [8] and [7], where change operations are restricted to the addition of new arguments and new attacks. More precisely, [7] introduces three types of changes called "expansions":

- the *normal expansion* adds new arguments and new attacks concerning at least one of the new arguments,
- the *weak expansion* refines the normal expansion by the addition of new arguments not attacking any old argument and
- the *strong expansion* refines the normal expansion by the addition of new arguments not being attacked by any old argument.

The authors showed that it is not the case in general that any desired set of arguments is enforceable using a particular expansion and that in some cases, several enforcements are possible, some of them requiring more effort than others. Baumann [7] has specified necessary and sufficient conditions, called "characteristics" under which enforcements are possible.

More precisely, a characteristic of a set of arguments is defined wrt a semantics and a set of possible expansions, as the minimal number of modifications (in terms of differences between attacks) that are needed in order to enforce this set of arguments. This number equals 0 when each argument of the desired set is already accepted. It equals infinity if no enforcement is possible. [7] provides means to compute a characteristic w.r.t. a given type of expansion and a given semantics. The characteristic of a set of arguments can be viewed as an evaluation of the change required to accept this set of arguments. Thanks to Theorem 3, we can translate the fact that the characteristic of a set of arguments E w.r.t. an argumentation graph \mathcal{G} under the grounded semantics (for instance) is c by the following expression:

$$\mathcal{G}' \in [\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \quad \diamondsuit^{att} \quad (E \subseteq p) \land G(p)] \text{ implies that } dist_{att}(\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}') = c$$

where \diamondsuit^{att} is an update operator based on a preference ordering that minimizes $dist_{att}$ with $dist_{att}$ being the number of attacks that are modified (see Section 5.4), $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G})$ is a formula describing the graph \mathcal{G} and G(p) means that the set p is the grounded extension (see Section 4). The previous expression means that in order to enforce E to be in the grounded extension, an update operation will lead to an argumentation graph that has c attacks that are changed wrt the initial argumentation graph. These characteristics are related to our characterizations since the latter are necessary or sufficient conditions for obtaining a given change property. However our characterizations are expressed in a more general setting in which the authorized transitions are not limited to Baumann's expansions and the goals are not restricted to enforcement.

Moreover, among the different kinds of changes proposed by Baumann, the normal expansion, *i.e.*, adding an argument with the attacks that concern it, can be easily encoded by a particular update operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}_B}^{att}$: $\mathscr{L} \times \mathscr{L} \to \mathscr{L}$ with $\mathcal{T}_B = \{((\mathcal{A}_1, \mathcal{R}_1), (\mathcal{A}_2, \mathcal{R}_2)) \mid \mathcal{A}_1 \subset \mathcal{A}_2, \mathcal{R}_1 \subseteq \mathcal{R}_2, \mathcal{R}_2 \setminus \mathcal{R}_1 \cap (\mathcal{A}_1 \times \mathcal{A}_1) = \emptyset\}$

Let us notice that in Baumann's framework, the initial argumentation graph should be completely known, *i.e.*, the formula that describes it should correspond to only one graph. And the formula concerning the goal of enforcement should describe a set of arguments that should be accepted (under a given semantics) after the change, such as G(p) for instance under the grounded semantics.³¹

The idea of enforcement can be found in the approach of Moguillansky et al. [44] through the concepts of *activation* and *de-activation* of arguments. The idea is to make arguments rejected in order to *activate* (make accepted) a given argument. Here the authors consider that they are facing a revision problem but neither representation theorems nor characterization postulates are given; the process of change is considered from the argumentation

³¹Note that since Baumann's enforcement is defined on one graph and not on a set of graphs, it is also a kind of belief revision since revision and update collapse when the initial world is completely known (this kind of belief revision won't be a pure AGM revision but rather a revision under transition constraints).

standpoint while keeping usual principles of belief revision, namely minimal change and success. The change machinery first involves the determination of *attacking lines* (sequences of arguments, where each argument attacks its predecessor) that prevent a given argument from being accepted, then the addition of new arguments so that the attacking lines are no more effective. The choice of the argument to attack in a given attacking line is based on the minimal change principle: the set of arguments of the line whose status is modified should be as small as possible.

Booth et al. [21] propose to represent the belief state of an agent by an argumentation graph and a constraint that encodes the outcome the agent believes the graph should have. This belief state can be changed in two ways: either by "strengthening" the constraint (more precisely, it amounts to add a restriction to the logical formula that describes the constraint), or by adding new arguments and/or attacks. However, it may happen that a change makes the new constraint and the outcome inconsistent. In that case, one solution proposed by [21] is to come up with an expansion of the argumentation graph that restores coherence. This issue of restoring coherence is related to the enforcement issue. Coste-Marquis et al. [26] define new enforcement operators for which enforcement can be achieved by adding arguments and attacks and also by questioning some attacks. They propose a boolean encoding for the new enforcement problems, which enables to formalize them as optimization problems.

Other works address dynamics in argumentation graphs using logical languages.

Logical languages [21] uses a logical labeling language for representing the constraints and the outcome of a graph. Formulae in this language are statements about the acceptance status of arguments. These formulae are interpreted on labelings, functions that assign to each argument of a graph a label in, out or undecided. In contrast, formulae in YALLA are interpreted on sets of argumentation graphs and may express the criteria underlying the traditional extension-based semantics as well as a wide range of properties that hold for some argumentation graphs. For instance, YALLA enables us to express in a same formula that a given set of arguments should be accepted under the complete semantics but not accepted under the preferred semantics. YALLA is a very expressive language capable of describing abstract argumentation, structural semantics (*i.e.* semantics based on the attack relation) and also change in argumentation systems.

Doutre et al. [29] encode argumentation frameworks and their dynamics

in DL-PA, the Dynamic Logic of Propositional Assignments. More precisely, to every input formula representing a goal to be enforced is associated a DL-PA program implementing the corresponding update. Enforcement operators are defined, which map an argumentation graph and a goal to a set of argumentation graphs. Three postulates are given, namely a success postulate, a minimal change postulate and a postulate of syntax independence. Note that, as in Baumann's approach [7], an enforcement operator applies to only one argumentation graph, which corresponds in our work to a formula with only one model.

Moreover, our formalism handles a richer set of change operations which are captured through the notion of update with transition constraints. Another difference lies in the additional properties that we have established on the basis of the characterizations proposed by Bisquert et al. in [14] that are specific for update of argumentation graphs.

Coste et al. [24] consider revision of an argumentation graph as minimal change of the argument status. More precisely, given an argumentation graph and a given semantics, a revision formula expresses how the status of some arguments has to be changed. Then the revision process derives argumentation graphs that satisfy the revision formula, while having extensions as close as possible to the extensions of the input graph. Revision formulae are expressed in a logical propositional language, where the propositional variables are the arguments. A typical example of goal that can be encoded is "Argument *a* must be accepted and Arguments *b* and *c* must be both accepted or both refused".

Revision operators are defined in a two-step process. The first step selects from sets of arguments that satisfy the revision formula those as close as possible to the extensions of the input graph, called candidates. The second step generates the argumentation graphs whose extensions coincide with the candidates, this is done by building argumentation graphs with the same arguments as the initial graph and with attacks that are chosen in order to coincide with the candidates. Note that the addition of arguments is not allowed in the revision process. Moreover, the logical language cannot encode complex goals, nor the argumentation semantics.

Coste et al. [25] propose a translation-based approach for revising argumentation systems which is closer to our approach. They propose to encode an argumentation framework into two kinds of logical constraints: those concerning the structure of the argumentation framework and those concerning the acceptance of arguments wrt a given semantics. This logical encoding allows the use of classical revision operators to perform a rational minimal change. Let us first note that the choice of revising instead of updating is not justified by these authors. Another difference with our approach concerns the logical encoding. Coste et al. [25] use a propositional language allowing the representation of attacks between arguments (the attack between arguments x and y is represented by the variable att(x, y)) and of skeptical acceptance (the variable acc(x) represents the skeptical acceptance of Argument x). Each semantics is encoded by a logical formula which expresses for each argument the condition under which it is skeptically accepted under this semantics. In contrast, YALLA is a first-order language with more expressivity. YALLA enables to encode sets of arguments, settheoretic properties and attacks between sets of arguments. YALLA enables to reason about extensions, and not only about argument acceptance: for each semantics, there is a formula in YALLA expressing that a subset of arguments is an extension under this semantics.

Diller et al. [28] study revision operators that produce a single argumentation framework as output, still using a minimal change principle on the extensions. This differs from [25] in which a set of argumentation frameworks was obtained. More precisely, [28] proposes two revision operators according to the representation of the new information which can be either 1) a propositional formula expressing the desired change in the extensions of the original system, or 2) a new argumentation system. Thanks to our first-order language YALLA the two kinds of revision that are proposed can be captured in our formalism. Moreover since there is no uncertainty about the initial system, revision and update collapse hence our framework is a generalization of [28] in which it is imposed that the resulting formula should only have one model.

Some other works provide a logical analysis of argumentation.

Villata et al. [54] propose a logical formalism for representing (and reasoning about) the extensions of traditional semantics. This work follows work of Besnard and Doutre [10]. The arguments of an argumentation graph are denoted by symbols of the language enabling the user to write formulae whose models are sets of arguments. However, the purpose of this work is to characterize the extensions, in particular, it is not possible to write formulae that relate the structure of an argumentation graph and its extensions.

A language with a similar expressivity has been proposed by Coste-Marquis et al. [27], with another purpose. The idea was to generalize Dung's formal framework [31] by taking into account additional constraints (expressed in a logical form) about the admissible sets of arguments.

A logical language was also proposed by Wooldridge et al. [58] in which it is possible to express acceptability, conflicts and defense between sets of arguments. However, this formalism is devoted to specific kinds of arguments namely logical arguments (*i.e.*, pairs (support, conclusion) where the support is a set of formulae that infers logically the formula constituting the conclusion).

Those works are related to our YALLA proposal since these languages enable also to describe and reason about argumentation graphs; however none of them enables the user to express structural properties of an abstract argumentation graph together with its semantic properties (which is the main purpose of YALLA).

8 Conclusion

This article proposes a complete framework for handling the dynamics of an abstract argumentation graph. Our first aim was to define a frame in which it is possible to represent several knowledge bases under the form of several argumentation graphs. More precisely, in our formalism, it is possible to express (and study) how an agent who has her own argumentation graph can interact on a target argumentation graph (that may represent a state of knowledge at a given stage of a debate). The two argumentation graphs are defined inside a referential argumentation graph called the universe (which constitutes a kind of "common language").

An important issue about knowledge dynamics is the establishment of a set of axioms that characterize rational changes. Hence it was important to situate our framework in the field of belief change theory. We first generalized classical update postulates in order to take into account a set of authorized transitions. Since the update approach is based on classical propositional logic, we have defined a logical language (called YALLA) for representing argumentation graphs. Then we have shown that the change operations on argumentation graphs are update operations. This discovery is very important since many works about enforcement (*e.g.* [44, 25, 28]) are only considering revision which we think inappropriate for reasoning in a public debate context. Since we are facing an update process we have been able to show that it guarantees the existence of a preference relation on transitions between argumentation systems. Hence it justifies the idea that it is rational to compute minimal change operations, or optimal plan. Moreover due to previous works about dynamics in argumentation we have been in position to provide a set of new properties that are specific of argumentation update. We have illustrated our framework on an example that takes place in a judicial context with a prosecutor and a lawyer.

Another interest of our formal study is the definition of the language YALLA. YALLA is a first order logical language able to express complex information about an argumentation system, not only its structure but also the relations between sets of arguments: e.g. attack/defense between sets of arguments, inclusion, union of sets. This permits to express the principles underlying the usual semantics (e.q. conflict-freeness, admissibility, complement-attack, maximality), and so the extensions can be derived from logical formulae. In the future YALLA will allow us to capture any definition of an acceptable set of arguments (*e.g.* semi-stable semantics ...). Several similar logical languages that express the relation between the attack relation and the extensions have been proposed in the recent years (see Section 7), but as far as we know, none of them has the same expressivity than YALLA. Moreover providing a logic-based tool that characterizes properties of evolving argumentation systems may enable us to use standard logic-based solvers (for instance, automatic theorem provers or SMT-solvers) in order to find new argumentation-based update properties.

In conclusion, the main result of this paper is a unified view of dynamics in argumentation with the use of a new logical language and the discovery of a set of properties specific for argumentation dynamics.

Many directions are opened and would be interesting to follow, we list four possible trails below.

- In our definition of the operations that are executable on an argumentation graph, we restrict to operations that really achieve a change, *i.e.* it is not possible to add an argument that is already present or to suppress an argument that is not there. This restriction is natural but can lead to ignore some possible changes when the initial graph is not completely known, since an operation could be excluded if it is not executable in one of the possible initial situations. An idea would be to relax the executability constraint in order to allow for adding arguments already present or removing non existing arguments (in that case the operation will have no effect).
- Concerning non elementary operations, it would be interesting to realize a comparative analysis of the effect of performing a set of elementary operations in parallel (or simultaneously) wrt performing them in sequence.

- The planning aspect of change in argumentation system is a growing area in the literature. From a strategical point of view, it would be interesting to study if there is a way for one of the agents to reach her goal on the target system whatever the future actions of the other agents are. This kind of "long term" objective is important in many debates where the agent does not necessarily want to "win" at the next step but she wants to win at the end of the debate.
- A very appealing perspective is to study how a private argumentation graph evolves in presence of a public argumentation graph (in which the operations can be viewed as public announcements [53]). This is clearly related to belief revision and could also be situated wrt approaches about fusion of argumentation graphs.

A Proofs

Proposition 1. U1 is implied by E3, E5 and E8.

Proof of Proposition 1. $\forall \varphi, \alpha \in \mathscr{L}$, if $\exists \omega' \in [\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha]$ then, due to **E3**, $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$, *i.e.*, $[\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $\forall \omega \in [\varphi], \exists \omega_1 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega') \in \mathcal{T}$. Hence using **E8**, $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha]$. Hence there is a $\omega \in [\varphi]$ such that $\omega' \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha]$. Due to **E5**, $(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \Phi(\omega') \models \Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \Phi(\omega'))$. Hence $\omega' \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \Phi(\omega'))]$. Due to **E3**, $(\Phi(\omega), (\alpha \land \Phi(\omega')) \models \mathcal{T}$ so $[\alpha \land \Phi(\omega')] \neq \emptyset$. Hence $\omega' \in [\alpha]$. Hence, **U1** holds.

Proposition 2. E3, U4, E5, E8, U9 constitute a minimal set: no postulate can be derived from the others.

Proof of Proposition 2. Let us recall the set of postulates: $\forall \varphi, \psi, \alpha, \beta \in \mathscr{L}$,

E3: $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ if and only if $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$

- **U4:** $[\varphi] = [\psi]$ and $[\alpha] = [\beta] \implies [\varphi \diamond \alpha] = [\psi \diamond \beta]$
- **E5:** If $card([\varphi]) = 1$ then $(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta \models \varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)$
- **E8:** if $([\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$) or $([\psi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\psi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$) then $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ else $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \lor (\psi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha)]$
- **U9:** If $card([\varphi]) = 1$ then if $[(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta] \neq \emptyset$ then $[(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta] \neq \emptyset \implies \varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta) \models (\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta$

In order to prove this result we have to provide for each postulate an operator satisfying the other postulates but not this one.

- **Independency of E3:** Let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ be such that $\forall \varphi, \alpha \in \mathscr{L}$, if $(\varphi, \alpha) \not\models \mathcal{T}$ then $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [\alpha]$ else $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$.
 - E3 does not hold.
 - **U4** holds: since we define $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ only from the models of φ and α .
 - **E5** holds: since if $(\Phi(\omega), \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$ then $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$, hence **U5** holds, else $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [\alpha]$ and $(\Phi(\omega), \alpha) \not\models \mathcal{T}$ which implies $(\Phi(\omega), \alpha \land \beta) \not\models \mathcal{T}$, hence $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)] = [\alpha \land \beta]$ hence **E5** holds.
 - **E8** holds: If $\varphi \neq \emptyset$ and $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ then $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$, which implies $(\varphi \lor \psi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$, hence $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ (**E8** holds). Else $(\varphi, \alpha) \not\models \mathcal{T}$ and $(\psi, \alpha) \not\models \mathcal{T}$, thus $(\varphi \lor \psi, \alpha) \not\models \mathcal{T}$ which means $[\varphi \lor \psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [\alpha] = [\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [\psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha].$
 - **U9** holds: If $[(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta] \neq \emptyset$ then it means that $[(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \neq \emptyset]$ hence $(\varphi, \alpha) \not\models \mathcal{T}$, *i.e.*, $[(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) = [\alpha]$, so $[(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta] = [\alpha \land \beta]$. Moreover, $(\varphi, \alpha) \not\models \mathcal{T}$ implies $(\varphi, \alpha \land \beta) \not\models \mathcal{T}$. This means that $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)] = [\alpha \land \beta]$.
- **Independency of U4:** Given a formula $\alpha \in \mathscr{L}$ and a world $\omega \in \Omega$, let us denote by $r_{\omega}(\alpha)$ the number of the first literal in α that holds in ω . Let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ be such that $\forall \omega \in \Omega$, $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_1 \in [\alpha] \text{ such that } (\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$ and for any other world $\omega_2 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}, r_{\omega_2}(\alpha) \geq r_{\omega_1}(\alpha)\}$. And $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ if $\exists \omega \in [\varphi]$ such that $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ otherwise $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha]$.
 - E3 holds.
 - **U4** does not hold: let us consider \mathscr{L} based on $\mathcal{A} = \{a, b\}$ and three worlds $\omega, \omega_1, \omega_2$ such that $\Phi(\omega_1) = on(a) \land \neg on(b)$ and $\Phi(\omega_2) = \neg on(a) \land on(b)$, let us suppose that \mathcal{T} contains at least the transitions (ω, ω_1) and (ω, ω_2) . If we set $\alpha = \Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2)$ and $\beta = \Phi(\omega_2) \lor \Phi(\omega_1)$, then it leads to $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_1\}$ and $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \beta] = \{\omega_2\}.$
 - E5 and U9 hold since the ordering of the literals is not changed in the conjunction.
 - **E8** holds by definition.
- **Independency of E5:** Let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ be such that $\forall \varphi, \alpha \in \mathscr{L}, \exists \omega_0 \in \Omega$ such that if $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$ then $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_0\}$ else $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$.

- E3 holds.
- U4 holds.
- **E5** does not hold: since $\forall \omega_1 \in \Omega$ such that $\omega_1 \neq \omega_0$ and $\forall \omega \in \Omega$ such that $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$, we have $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_1)] = \{\omega_0\}$, hence $[(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_1)) \land \Phi(\omega_0)] = \{\omega_0\}$, while $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \land \Phi(\omega_0))] = \emptyset$ (since $[\Phi(\omega_1) \land \Phi(\omega_0)] = \emptyset$, which implies that $(\Phi(\omega), \Phi(\omega_1) \land \Phi(\omega_0)) \not\models \mathcal{T}$).
- **E8** holds: If $\varphi \neq \emptyset$ and $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ then $(\varphi, \alpha) \not\models \mathcal{T}$, which implies $(\varphi \lor \psi, \alpha) \not\models \mathcal{T}$, hence $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ (**E8** holds). Else $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$ and $(\psi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$, thus $(\varphi \lor \psi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$ which means $[\varphi \lor \psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_0\} = [\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [\psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha].$
- **U9** holds: If $[(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta] \neq \emptyset$ then it means that $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ hence $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$, *i.e.*, $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_0\}$. Hence $\omega_0 \in [\beta]$, this means that $(\varphi, \alpha \land \beta) \models \mathcal{T}$, hence $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)] = \{\omega_0\}$.
- **Independency of E8:** Let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ be such that $\forall \varphi, \alpha \in \mathscr{L}, \exists \omega_1, \omega_2 \in \Omega$, such that $\omega_1 \neq \omega_2$ and if $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$ and $Card([\varphi]) = 1$ then $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_1\}$, if $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$ and $Card([\varphi]) \neq 1$, $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_2\}$, otherwise $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$.
 - E3 holds.
 - U4 holds.
 - **E5** holds: if $\omega_1 \in [(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta]$, then $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_1\}$ hence $\omega_1 \in [\beta]$ and $(\Phi(\omega), \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$. Thus, $(\Phi(\omega), \alpha \land \beta) \models \mathcal{T}$ hence $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)] = \{\omega_1\}$. Hence the result.
 - **E8** does not hold: the first part of **E8** may hold but when $Card([\varphi]) = Card([\psi]) = 1$ and $\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha \neq \emptyset$ and $\psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha \neq \emptyset$ then we have $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_2\}$ while $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [\psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_1\}$. Hence **E8** does not hold.
 - **U9** holds: Same method as the one for **U5**.
- **Independency of U9:** Let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ be such that $\forall \varphi, \alpha \in \mathscr{L}, \exists \omega_0 \in \Omega$, if $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$ then (if $[\alpha] \neq \Omega$ then $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = [\alpha]$ else $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_0\}$) otherwise $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$.
 - E3 holds
 - U4 holds.

- **E5** holds: if $\omega_1 \in [(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta]$ then if $[\alpha] \neq \Omega$ then $\omega_1 \in ([\alpha] \cap [\beta])$. Hence, $[\alpha \land \beta] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\alpha \land \beta] \neq \Omega$, it means that $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)] = [\alpha \land \beta]$, hence **E5** holds. Now, if $[\alpha] = \Omega$ then $[(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta] = \{\omega_0\} \cap [\beta]$, this means that $\omega_1 = \omega_0$ and $\omega_0 \in [\beta]$, hence $\omega_0 \in [\alpha \land \beta]$. Now, either $[\alpha \land \beta] = \Omega$ and $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)] = \{\omega_0\}$, or $\alpha \land \beta \neq \Omega$ and $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)] = [\alpha \land \beta]$. In both cases, **E5** holds.
- **E8** holds: the definition of $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ does not depend on the first parameter (except for detecting failure) hence **E8** holds (same kind of proof as for **E5** independency).
- **U9** does not hold: For instance let us consider $\omega_1 \in \Omega$ such that $\omega_1 \neq \omega_0$ and $(\varphi, \Phi(\omega_1)) \models \mathcal{T}$, we have $[(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \top) \land (\Phi(\omega_0) \lor \Phi(\omega_1))] \neq \emptyset$ while $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\top \land (\Phi(\omega_0) \lor \Phi(\omega_1))] = \{\omega_0, \omega_1\} \not\subset [(\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \top) \land (\Phi(\omega_0) \lor \Phi(\omega_1))] = \{\omega_0\}.$

Theorem 2. Given a set $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Omega \times \Omega$ of authorized transitions, there is an operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} : \mathscr{L} \times \mathscr{L} \to \mathscr{L}$ satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9** if and only if there is an assignment respecting \mathcal{T} such that $\forall \omega \in \Omega, \forall \varphi, \alpha \in \mathscr{L}$,

- (1) $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ if $\exists \omega \in [\varphi]$ such that $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$
- (2) $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \text{ otherwise}$

$$(3) \ [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \left\{ \omega_1 \in \Omega \middle| \begin{array}{l} \omega_1 \in [\alpha] \text{ and} \\ (\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T} \text{ and} \\ (\forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha] \text{ such that} (\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2) \end{array} \right\}$$

Proof of Theorem 2. The proof is similar to the one done by Katsuno and Mendelzon except that it does not rely on postulate **U2**, and uses the restricted versions **E3**, **E5** and **E8**. Moreover it takes into account the set \mathcal{T} . Note that this proof uses Proposition 4 which is defined later (but only relies on **E3**). This proof is carried out in two steps.

Step 1: Let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} : \mathscr{L} \times \mathscr{L} \to \mathscr{L}$ be an operator satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9**. For any $\omega \in \Omega$, let us define \preceq_{ω} such that $\omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2$ if and only if $\omega_1 \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}(\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))]$ or $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}(\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))] = \emptyset$.

We can show that \preceq_{ω} is a complete preorder. In the following we abbreviate $\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_x) \lor \Phi(\omega_y)$ by $\diamondsuit(x, y)$ and $\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2) \lor \Phi(\omega_3))$ by $\diamondsuit(1, 2, 3)$

- Transitivity: Let us consider $\omega, \omega_1, \omega_2, \omega_3 \in \Omega$, such that $\omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2$ and $\omega_2 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_3$, there are four cases:
 - $-\omega_1 \in \Diamond(1,2)$ and $\omega_2 \in \Diamond(2,3)$: due to Proposition 4, we get $\Diamond(1,2,3) \neq \emptyset$. Hence, due to **U1**, $[\Diamond(1,2,3)] \subseteq \{\omega_1,\omega_2,\omega_3\}$.
 - * if $[\Diamond(1,2,3) \land (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))] = \varnothing$ then $[\Diamond(1,2,3)] = \{\omega_3\}$, which means that $[\Diamond(1,2,3) \land (\Phi(\omega_2) \lor \Phi(\omega_3))] \neq \varnothing$, hence using both **U9** and **E5**, $\Diamond(1,2,3) \land (\Phi(\omega_2) \lor \Phi(\omega_3)) = \Diamond(2,3)$ this is in contradiction with the hypothesis that $\omega_2 \in \Diamond(2,3)$.
 - * if $[\Diamond(1,2,3) \land (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))] \neq \emptyset$ then using **E5** and **U9**, $\Diamond(1,2) = \Diamond(1,2,3) \land [(\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))]$. Hence, $\omega_1 \in \Diamond(1,2,3)$. Due to **E5** and **U9** again, $\Diamond(1,3) = \Diamond(1,2,3) \land [(\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_3))]$, hence $\omega_1 \in \Diamond(1,3)$.
 - $\Diamond (1,2) = \emptyset$ and $\omega_2 \in \Diamond (2,3)$: due to the converse of Proposition 4, we get $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_2)] = \emptyset$. Now, due to **E5**, $\Diamond (2,3) \land \Phi(\omega_2) \models \Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_2)$ hence $\omega_2 \notin \Diamond (2,3)$, contradiction: so this case never occurs.
 - $-\omega_{1} \in \Diamond(1,2) \text{ and } \Diamond(2,3) = \emptyset, \text{ using Proposition 4, we get that } [\Diamond(1,2,3)] \neq \emptyset, \text{ from } \mathbf{U1}, [\Diamond(1,2,3)] \subseteq \{\omega 1, \omega 2, \omega 3\}.$ Using **E5** and **U9**, as previously we get that $\omega_{2} \notin \Diamond(1,2,3)$ and $\omega_{3} \notin \Diamond(1,2,3)$. Hence, $[\Diamond(1,2,3) \land (\Phi(\omega_{1}) \lor \Phi(\omega_{2}))]$ should contain ω_{1} . Using **E5** we get $\omega_{1} \in \Diamond(1,3)$.
 - $\Diamond (1,2) = \emptyset$ and $\Diamond (2,3) = \emptyset$, using Proposition 4, we get that $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_1)] = \emptyset$ and $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_3)] = \emptyset$, using **E5** we get that $\Diamond (1,3) = \emptyset$.
- Reflexivity: $\forall \omega, \omega_1 \in \Omega$, using **U1**, $\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_1) \models \Phi(\omega_1)$, hence either $\omega_1 \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_1)]$ or $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_1)] = \emptyset$. Hence $\omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_1$.
- Completeness: $\forall \omega, \omega_1, \omega_2 \in \Omega$, if $\omega_1 \not\preceq \omega_2$ then $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))] \neq \emptyset$ and $\omega_1 \not\in [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))]$, due to **U1** it means that $\omega_2 \in [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))]$. Hence $\omega_2 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_1$.
- \leq_{ω} respects \mathcal{T} : if $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$ and $(\omega, \omega_2) \notin \mathcal{T}$ and $\omega_2 \leq_{\omega} \omega_1$ it means that either $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))] = \varnothing$ or $\omega_2 \in [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))].$ Due to **E3**, since $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$, $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_1)] \neq \varnothing$.

Due to **U1**, $\omega_1 \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_1)]$. Hence using **E5** and **U9**, $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2)) \land \Phi(\omega_1)] = [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1)] = \{\omega 1\}$. Contradiction, hence $\omega_1 \prec_{\omega} \omega_2$. Let us show now that $\forall \omega \in \Omega, \forall \alpha \in \mathscr{L}, [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_1 \in [\alpha] \text{ such that } (\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T} \text{ and } \forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha], \text{ such that } (\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2 \}.$

- If $\omega_1 \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha]$, due to **U1**, $\omega_1 \in [\alpha]$. If $\exists \omega_2 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}$ and $\omega_2 \prec_{\omega} \omega_1$, it means that $\omega_1 \notin [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))]$. Due to **E5**, $(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2)) \models \Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))$ which implies $\omega_1 \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))]$, hence $\omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2$. Moreover, due to **E5**, $[(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \Phi(\omega_1)] \subseteq [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_1)]$, hence $\omega_1 \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_1)]$, hence $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$. Thus $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \subseteq \{\omega_1 \in [\alpha], (\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T} \text{ and } \forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha] \text{ such that } (\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2\}$.
- Conversely, let $\omega_1 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$ and $\forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2$. Let us first consider $\omega_2 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_2) \notin \mathcal{T}$, Due to **E5**: $[(\Phi(\omega) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))) \land \Phi(\omega_2)] \subseteq [\Phi(\omega) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_2)]$ and, since $(\omega, \omega_2) \notin \mathcal{T}$, due to **E3**, $[\Phi(\omega) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \Phi(\omega_2)] = \varnothing$. Moreover since $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$, we get using **E3** that $[\Phi(\omega) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2)] \neq \varnothing$. Due to **U1**, $[\Phi(\omega) \diamond (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))] \subseteq \{\omega_1, \omega_2\}$. Hence, $[\Phi(\omega) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))] = \{\omega_1\}$ this result, say (a), holds for any $\omega_2 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_2) \notin \mathcal{T}$.

Furthermore, due to our hypothesis about $\omega_1, \forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}$, if $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))] \neq \emptyset$ then $\omega_1 \in [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_2))]$. Let us call (b) this result.

Let us denote, without loss of generality, $\{\omega_1, \ldots, \omega_n\} = [\alpha]$ the set of worlds in which α holds (this set is finite since \mathcal{A} is finite and R is fixed).

Due to **E3** and **U1**, since $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$ and $\omega_1 \in [\alpha]$, we get $[(\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha)] \neq \emptyset$ and $[(\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha)] \subseteq [\alpha] = \{\omega_1, \ldots, \omega_n\}$. Hence, for some $k \in [1, n]$, it holds that $[(\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_i))] \neq \emptyset$. Let us notice that $\forall i \in [2, n], [\alpha \land (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_i)] = [(\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_i))]$. Due to **U4**, we deduce that $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_i))] = [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_i))]$

By definition of k, we can apply both **E5** and **U9**, we get $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_k))] = [(\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_k))] \neq \emptyset.$

If $(\omega, \omega_k) \notin \mathcal{T}$ then due to (a) we get $[((\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_k))] = \{\omega_1\}$. If $(\omega, \omega_k) \in \mathcal{T}$ then due to (b) we get $\omega_1 \in [((\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land (\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \Phi(\omega_k)))]$. In both cases, $\omega_1 \in [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha]$.

Now, if $[\varphi] = \emptyset$ then $\bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$. Else let us denote $\omega_1, \ldots, \omega_n$ the worlds in which φ holds: $[\varphi] = [\Phi(\omega_1) \lor \ldots, \Phi(\omega_n)]$, using **E8**, if $\exists \omega \in [\varphi]$ such that $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ then $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ else we get that $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha]$. Hence, the result.

Step 2: Let \preceq_{ω} be a complete preorder on $\Omega \times \Omega$ respecting \mathcal{T} , let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ be defined by $\forall \omega \in \Omega$, $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_1 \in [\alpha] \text{ such that } (\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T} \text{ and} \\ \forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha] \text{ such that } (\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \ \omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2\} \text{ and } [\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset \text{ if } \exists \omega \in [\varphi] \text{ such that } [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset. \text{ Otherwise } [\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha].$

Let us show that $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8** and **U9**:

E3:

- $(\Rightarrow:) \quad [\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset \text{ if and only if } [\varphi] \neq \emptyset \text{ and } \forall \omega \in [\varphi], \ [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset \\ \emptyset. \text{ This implies that } (\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T} \text{ since it is equivalent to} \\ [\varphi] \neq \emptyset \text{ and } \forall \omega \in [\varphi], \ \exists \omega' \in [\alpha] \text{ such that } (\omega, \omega') \in \mathcal{T}.$
- (\Leftarrow :) if $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$ then $[\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $\forall \omega \in [\varphi], \exists \omega' \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega') \in \mathcal{T}$. Due to the completeness of \preceq_{ω} it means that $\exists \omega_1 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$ and $\forall \omega' \in [\alpha], \omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega'$. By definition it means that $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$.
- **U4**: since the definition of $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ is only based on the models of φ and α , it is easy to check that **U4** holds.
- **E5**: if $[(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta] \neq \emptyset$ then $\exists \omega_a \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \cap [\beta]$. Thus, $\omega_a \in [\beta]$ and $\omega_a \in [\alpha]$ and $(\omega, \omega_a) \in \mathcal{T}$ and $\forall \omega_1 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}, \ \omega_a \preceq_{\omega} \omega_1$. Hence $\forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha \land \beta]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \ \omega_2$ being in $[\alpha]$, it means that $\omega_a \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2$. Hence, $\omega_a \in [(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)].$
- E8: by definition.
- **U9**: if $[(\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta] \neq \emptyset$ then let $\omega_b \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \land \beta)]$ then $\omega_b \in [\alpha \land \beta]$ and $(\omega, \omega_b) \in \mathcal{T}$ and $\forall \omega_1 \in [\alpha \land \beta]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$, $\omega_b \preceq_{\omega} \omega_1$. Now let $\omega_a \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta]$, it means that $\omega_a \in [\alpha \land \beta]$ and $(\omega, \omega_a) \in \mathcal{T}$, hence $\omega_b \preceq_{\omega} \omega_a$. Moreover, by definition of ω_a , $\forall \omega_1 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$, $\omega_a \preceq_{\omega} \omega_1$. Thus, by transitivity, $\forall \omega_1 \in [\alpha]$ such that $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$, $\omega_b \preceq_{\omega} \omega_1$. Thus, $\omega_b \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha) \land \beta]$.

Proposition 3. If $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8** and **U9** then $([\varphi] = \emptyset$ or $[\alpha] = \emptyset) \implies [\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$.

Proof of Proposition 3. The proof is straightforward from the equation relating $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ and \preceq in Theorem 2.

Proposition 4. If $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies **E3** then $([\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset) \implies (\forall \gamma, [\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \lor \gamma)] \neq \emptyset).$

Proof of Proposition 4. Let $\varphi, \alpha \in \mathscr{L}$ such that $[\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ and $\diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies E_3 . It means that $(\varphi, \alpha) \models \mathcal{T}$, *i.e.*, $\forall \omega \in [\varphi], \exists \omega_1 \in [\alpha],$ $(\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T}$. Now, $\forall \beta \in \mathscr{L}, [\alpha] \subseteq [\alpha \lor \beta]$, hence $\omega_1 \in [\alpha \lor \beta]$. This means that $(\varphi, \alpha \lor \beta) \models \mathcal{T}$. Using **E3**, we get $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} (\alpha \lor \beta)] \neq \emptyset$. \Box

Proposition 5. Given a reflexive relation $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Omega \times \Omega$ of authorized transitions, there is an operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} : \mathscr{L} \times \mathscr{L} \to \mathscr{L}$ satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9** that satisfies **U2** if and only if there is a faithful assignment respecting \mathcal{T} defined as in Theorem 2.

Proof of Proposition 5. Let \mathcal{T} be a reflexive relation on $\Omega \times \Omega$.

- (a). Let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} : \mathscr{L} \times \mathscr{L} \to \mathscr{L}$ be an operator satisfying **U2**, **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9**. For any $\omega \in \Omega$, let us define \preceq_{ω} such that $\omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2$ if and only if $\omega_1 \in [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \vee \Phi(\omega_2))]$ or $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega_1) \vee \Phi(\omega_2))] = \emptyset$. Due to Theorem 2, \preceq_{ω} is a complete preorder on Ω respecting \mathcal{T} . $\forall \omega_1 \in \Omega$, let us compute $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega) \vee \Phi(\omega_1))]$. Due to **U2**, since $\Phi(\omega) \models \Phi(\omega) \vee \Phi(\omega_1)$, we have $[\Phi(\omega) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (\Phi(\omega) \vee \Phi(\omega_1))] = [\Phi(\omega)]$. Hence, $\omega \prec_{\omega} \omega_1$. It means that the assignment is faithful.
- (b). $\forall \omega \in \Omega$, let \preceq_{ω} be a complete preorder on $\Omega \times \Omega$ respecting \mathcal{T} , and such that $\forall \omega_1, \omega \prec_{\omega} \omega_1$. Let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ be defined by $\forall \omega \in \Omega$, $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] =$ $\{\omega_1 \in [\alpha] \text{ such that } (\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T} \text{ and } \forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha], \omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2\}$ and $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ if $\exists \omega \in [\varphi]$ such that $[\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$. Otherwise $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} [\Phi(\omega) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha]$. Due to Theorem 2, $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies **U1**, **E3**,

U4, **E5**, **E8** and **U9**. Let us check if **U2** holds: let $\varphi, \alpha \in \mathcal{L}$, such that $\varphi \models \alpha$.

- (a) If $[\varphi] = \emptyset$ then due to Proposition 3 $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ (hence **U2** holds).
- (b) If $[\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ then let $\omega \in [\varphi]$, $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega_1 \in [\alpha] \text{ such that} (\omega, \omega_1) \in \mathcal{T} \text{ and } \forall \omega_2 \in [\alpha] \text{ such that } (\omega, \omega_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \omega_1 \preceq_{\omega} \omega_2\}.$

Since $\varphi \models \alpha$, it meant that $\omega \models \alpha$. Moreover since \mathcal{T} is reflexive then $(\omega, \omega) \in \mathcal{T}$, lastly, due to faithfulness, $\forall \omega_1, \omega \prec_\omega \omega_1$. Hence $\omega \in [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha]$ and $\forall \omega_1 \neq \omega, \omega_1 \notin [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha]$. It means that $[\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \{\omega\} = [\Phi(\omega)]$. This is true for any $\omega \in [\varphi]$, hence $\bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} [\Phi(\omega) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \bigcup_{\omega \in [\varphi]} [\Phi(\omega)] = [\varphi]$ (hence **U2** holds).

Proposition 6. If $\mathcal{T} = \Omega \times \Omega$ then $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies U2, E3, U4, E5, E8, U9 if and only if $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies U1, U2, U3, U4, U5, U8 and U9.

Proof of Proposition 6. Let $\mathcal{T} = \Omega \times \Omega$.

- (a). Let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ be an operator satisfying U2, E3, U4, E5, E8, U9, let us show that it satisfies U1, U3, U5 and U8:
 - **U1:** This is due to Proposition 1.
 - **U3:** If $[\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ then due to **E3**, $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ if and only if $(\varphi, \alpha) \in \mathcal{T}$. Hence, \mathcal{T} being equal to $\Omega \times \Omega$, if $[\alpha] \neq \emptyset$ then $(\varphi, \alpha) \in \mathcal{T}$ thus $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$.
 - U5: This is due to U8 and E5.
 - **U8:** If $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ or $[\psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ then, due to **E8**, we have $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$, hence **U8** holds. If $[\varphi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\psi \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ then, due to **E8**, **U8** holds.
- (b). Let $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ be an operator satisfying **U1**, **U2**, **U3**, **U4**, **U5**, **U8** and **U9** let us show that it satisfies **E3**, **E5** and **E8**:
 - **E3:** When $\mathcal{T} = \Omega \times \Omega$, $(\varphi, \alpha) \in \mathcal{T} \Leftrightarrow [\alpha] \neq \emptyset$, hence the result.
 - E5: It is a particular case of U5.
 - **E8:** If $([\varphi] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$) then due to **U3** it means that $[\alpha] = \emptyset$, hence, due to **U1**, $[(\varphi \lor \psi) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha = \emptyset$. (**E8** holds).

Now, if $[\varphi] = \emptyset$ and $[\alpha] \neq \emptyset$ then, due to **U3**, $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$, idem for ψ . It means that the other case is when $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ and $[\psi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \neq \emptyset$ in that case **U8** applies hence **E8** holds.

Proposition 7. $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ is the unique model of $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$.

Proof of Proposition 7. Let $\mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}})$. Let $\mathcal{G}_1 \in \Omega_{\mathcal{A}}, \mathcal{G}_1 = (\mathcal{A}_1, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}_1})$, such that $\mathcal{G}_1 \in [\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G})]$. Using Definitions 14, 13 and the axioms proposed in Section 4.2.2, $\forall x \in \mathcal{A}, x \in \mathcal{G}$ if and only if on(x) is true in \mathcal{G}_1 . Hence, \mathcal{G}_1 has the same vertices as \mathcal{G} , *i.e.* $\mathcal{A}_1 = \mathcal{A}$. So $\mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}_1} = \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}}$ and $\mathcal{G}_1 = \mathcal{G}$. \Box

Proposition 8. Let $\mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ be a set of arguments, and $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ an argumentation graph such that $\mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}$ and $\mathcal{R} \subseteq \mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A}$. Let t, t_1, t_2, t_3 be terms of YALLA_U. We have:

- t is conflict-free in $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models on(t) \land (\neg(t \triangleright t))$. The latter formula is denoted by F(t).
- t_1 defends each element of t_2 in $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (\forall t_3 \\ ((singl(t_3) \land (t_3 \rhd t_2)) \implies (t_1 \rhd t_3)))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models t_1 \implies t_2$.
- If $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models singl(t_2)$, then t_1 indirectly defends the unique element of t_2 in $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ (which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models t_1 \rightarrowtail t_2$) if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (t_1 \bowtie t_2) \lor (\exists y ((t_1 \bowtie y) \land (y \Join t_2))).$
- t is admissible in $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (F(t) \land (t \bowtie t))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models A(t)$.
- t is a complete extension of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (A(t) \land \forall t_2 \ ((singl(t_2) \land (t \bowtie t_2)) \implies (t_2 \subseteq t)))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models C(t)$.
- t is the grounded extension of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (C(t) \land \forall t_2 \ (C(t_2) \implies (t \subseteq t_2)))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models G(t)$.
- t is a stable extension of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (F(t) \land \forall t_2 \\ ((singl(t_2) \land \neg(t_2 \subseteq t)) \implies (t \rhd t_2)))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models S(t)$.
- t is a preferred extension of $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R})$ if and only if $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models (A(t) \land \forall t_2 (((t_2 \neq t) \land (t \subseteq t_2)) \implies \neg A(t_2)))$, which is denoted by $(\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}) \models P(t)$.

Proof of Proposition 8. It follows easily from Definition 13 and from the definitions of the semantics. \Box

Theorem 3. Given $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ a set of authorized transitions, there exists an operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9** if and only if there is an assignment respecting \mathcal{T} such that $\forall \mathcal{G} \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \varphi, \alpha \in YALLA_{\mathbf{U}}$,

- (1) $[\varphi \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$ if $\exists \mathcal{G} \in [\varphi]$ such that $[\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \emptyset$
- (2) $[\varphi \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \bigcup_{\mathcal{G} \in [\varphi]} [\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] \text{ otherwise}$

$$(3) \ [\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \alpha] = \left\{ \mathcal{G}_1 \in \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \middle| \begin{array}{c} \mathcal{G}_1 \in [\alpha] \ and \\ (\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_1) \in \mathcal{T} \ and \\ (\forall \mathcal{G}_2 \in [\alpha] \ such \ that \ (\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \mathcal{G}_1 \preceq_{\mathcal{G}} \mathcal{G}_2) \end{array} \right\}$$

Proof of Theorem 3. It follows easily from Theorem 2 and from the parallel between graphs and sets of worlds. \Box

Proposition 9. Given a set of authorized transitions $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ such that³² $\mathcal{T}_e \subseteq \mathcal{T}$, for any characterization C of the form:

"If
$$\mathcal{G} \models \gamma_1$$
 and $\exists z, \mathcal{R}_z$ such that $o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ is executable by
an agent on \mathcal{G} and $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \alpha_z$ then $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_2$ ",

it holds that every assignment respecting \mathcal{T} and \mathcal{T}_e allows us to define a generalized enforcement operator $\diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ in the same way as in Theorem 3 satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9** and the additional postulate

$$\begin{split} \boldsymbol{A}_{C} \colon & \forall \mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, \forall \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}} \subseteq \mathcal{A} \times \mathcal{A}, \forall z \in \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}} \setminus \mathcal{A}, \\ & \forall \mathcal{R}_{z} \subseteq (\{z\} \times \mathcal{A}) \cup (\mathcal{A} \times \{z\}), \\ let & \mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}}) \text{ and } o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_{z} \rangle, \\ if & \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_{1} \text{ and } (\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}_{e} \text{ and } \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(o(\mathcal{G})) \models \alpha_{z} \\ then & \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (on(z) \wedge \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_{z}}) \models \gamma_{2}. \end{split}$$

where $\varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z} = \bigwedge_{(x,y)\in\mathcal{R}_z)} (x \rhd y) \land \bigwedge_{x\in\mathcal{G}|(x,z)\notin\mathcal{R}_z} \neg (x \rhd z) \land \bigwedge_{y\in\mathcal{G}|(z,y)\notin\mathcal{R}_z} \neg (z \rhd y)$ y) is a formula that describes the attacks that are in \mathcal{R}_z and that excludes

y) is a formula that describes the attacks that are in \mathcal{R}_z and that excludes any other attack concerning z.

Proof of Proposition 9. Due to Theorem 3, every assignment respecting \mathcal{T} allows us to define a generalized enforcement operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfying E3, U4, E5, E8 and U9.

Let us show that $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfies \mathbf{A}_C . For any graph $\mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}})$ and any argument $z \notin \mathcal{A}$ and any set of attacks \mathcal{R}_z that are concerning z, let $o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$ and let us assume that (a1) $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_1$, (a2) $(\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}_e$

 $^{^{32}}$ The elementary operations that are executable should be authorized, *i.e.* included in the set of authorized transitions.
and (a3) $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(o(\mathcal{G})) \models \alpha_z$. (a1) means that $\mathcal{G} \models \gamma_1$. Moreover, (a2) means that o is an elementary operation executable by an agent on \mathcal{G} . (a3) means that $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \alpha_z$. Hence we can apply the characterization C and we get that $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_2$.

In order to prove \mathbf{A}_C , we are going to show that $o(\mathcal{G})$ is the only model of $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (on(z) \land \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z})$.

Using Theorem 3, we have $[\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}(on(z) \land \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z})] = \{\mathcal{G}_1 \in [on(z) \land \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z}] | (\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_1) \in \mathcal{T} \text{ and } (\forall \mathcal{G}_2 \in [on(z) \land \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z}] \text{ such that } (\mathcal{G}, \mathcal{G}_2) \in \mathcal{T}, \mathcal{G}_1 \preceq_{\mathcal{G}} \mathcal{G}_2) \}.$

Now, an operation from \mathcal{G} (that does not contain z) to a graph in $[on(z) \land \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z}]$ should at least add the argument z together with exactly \mathcal{R}_z interactions (and no other interaction concerning z), hence the only elementary operation that could do that is $o = \langle \oplus, z, \mathcal{R}_z \rangle$. Moreover, since $\mathcal{T}_e \subseteq \mathcal{T}$ it means that $(\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}$ (since o is an elementary change executable by an agent on \mathcal{G}). Now if there exists another operation o' from \mathcal{G} to a graph in $[on(z) \land \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z}]$ and such that $(\mathcal{G}, o'(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}$ then this operation is not elementary (*i.e.* $o'(\mathcal{G})$ contains z with exactly its corresponding attacks but $o'(\mathcal{G})$ either contains some other arguments that were not in \mathcal{G} or it is the case that some arguments that were in \mathcal{G} are no longer in $o'(\mathcal{G})$). Hence $o(\mathcal{G}) \prec_{\mathcal{G}} o'(\mathcal{G})$. This is true for every operation o' distinct from o which means that $\{o(\mathcal{G})\} = [\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (on(z) \land \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z})]$. We have seen that $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_2$ hence $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamond_{\mathcal{T}} (on(z) \land \varphi_{\mathcal{R}_z}) \models \gamma_2$.

Proposition 10. Given a set of authorized transitions $\mathcal{T} \subseteq \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}} \times \Gamma_{\mathbf{U}}$ such that $\mathcal{T}_e \subseteq \mathcal{T}$, for any characterization C of the form:

"If $\mathcal{G} \models \gamma_1$ and $\exists z \text{ such that } o = \langle \ominus, z, \emptyset \rangle$ is executable by an agent on \mathcal{G} and $\mathcal{G} \models \alpha_z$ then $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_2$ ",

it holds that every assignment respecting \mathcal{T} and \mathcal{T}_e allows us to define a generalized enforcement operator $\diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ in the same way as in Theorem 3 satisfying **E3**, **U4**, **E5**, **E8**, **U9** and the additional property

A_C :	$orall \mathcal{A} \subseteq \mathcal{A}_{\mathbf{U}}, orall \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}} \subseteq \mathcal{A} imes \mathcal{A}, orall z \in \mathcal{A},$
let	$\mathcal{G} = (\mathcal{A}, \mathcal{R}_{\mathcal{A}}) ~~and~o = \langle \ominus, z, arnothing angle,$
if	$\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_1 \text{ and } (\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in \mathcal{T}_e \text{ and } \Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models \alpha_z$
then	$\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \neg on(z) \models \gamma_2$

Proof of Proposition 10. Due to Theorem 3, every assignment respecting \mathcal{T} allows us to define a generalized enforcement operator $\Diamond_{\mathcal{T}}$ satisfying E3,

U4, E5, E8 and **U9**. Now since $\mathcal{T}_e \subseteq \mathcal{T}$ it means that all elementary transitions are authorized. Therefore an assignment respecting \mathcal{T} and preferring elementary changes will associate to any graph \mathcal{G} a preference relation $\preceq_{\mathcal{G}}$ that will prefer to perform an elementary change if it exists. Thus the preferred (wrt to $\preceq_{\mathcal{G}}$) graphs satisfying the formula $\neg on(z)$ are the graphs that are obtained by an elementary change done on \mathcal{G} if they exist. Moreover since $z \in \mathcal{A}$ this elementary change is necessarily the removal of z. There is only one elementary change o that removes z it is exactly $\langle \ominus, z, \varnothing \rangle$. This means that the only model of $[\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \neg on(z)]$ is $\langle \ominus, z, \varnothing \rangle(\mathcal{G})$; then using the characterization we know that if $\mathcal{G} \models \gamma_1$ and if o is executable by an agent on \mathcal{G} and $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \alpha_z$ then $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_2$. Hence if o is executable by an agent on \mathcal{G} it means that $[\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \neg on(z)] = \{o(\mathcal{G})\}$, thus if $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \models \gamma_1$ and $(\mathcal{G}, o(\mathcal{G})) \in T_e$ and $o(\mathcal{G}) \models \alpha_z$ then $\Phi_{\mathbf{U}}(\mathcal{G}) \diamondsuit_{\mathcal{T}} \neg on(z) \models \gamma_2$. \Box

Proposition 11. \Diamond^{on} satisfies all the characterization properties.

Proof of Proposition 11. Since the assignment of \preceq^{on} is preferring elementary changes then, due to Propositions 9 and 10, we obtain directly the result.

References

- C. Alchourrón, P. Gärdenfors, and D. Makinson. On the logic of theory change : partial meet contraction and revision functions. *Journal of Symbolic Logic*, 50:510–530, 1985.
- [2] L. Amgoud and F. Dupin de Saint-Cyr Bannay. Extracting the core of a persuasion dialog to evaluate its quality. In Claudio Sossai and Gaetano Chemello, editors, European Conference on Symbolic and Quantitative Approaches to Reasoning with Uncertainty (ECSQARU), Vérone, Italie, 01/07/2009-03/07/2009, volume LNAI 5590, pages 59– 70, http://www.springerlink.com/, 2009. Springer-Verlag.
- [3] Leila Amgoud and Claudette Cayrol. Inferring from inconsistency in preference-based argumentation frameworks. *International Journal of Automated Reasoning*, 29(2):125–169, 2002.
- [4] Leila Amgoud and Henri Prade. Using arguments for making and explaining decisions. Artificial Intelligence, 173(3-4):413–436, 2009.

- [5] Pietro Baroni, Guido Boella, Federico Cerutti, Massimiliano Giacomin, Leendert W. N. van der Torre, and Serena Villata. On the input/output behavior of argumentation frameworks. *Artif. Intell.*, 217:144–197, 2014.
- [6] Pietro Baroni, Massimiliano Giacomin, and Beishui Liao. On topologyrelated properties of abstract argumentation semantics. A correction and extension to dynamics of argumentation systems: A division-based method. Artif. Intell., 212:104–115, 2014.
- [7] Ringo Baumann. What does it take to enforce an argument? minimal change in abstract argumentation. In Luc De Raedt, Christian Bessière, Didier Dubois, Patrick Doherty, Paolo Frasconi, Fredrik Heintz, and Peter J. F. Lucas, editors, 20th European Conference on Artificial Intelligence (ECAI 2012), volume 242 of Frontiers in Artificial Intelligence and Applications, pages 127–132. IOS Press, 2012.
- [8] Ringo Baumann and Gerhard Brewka. Expanding argumentation frameworks: Enforcing and monotonicity results. In Proceeding of the 2010 conference on Computational Models of Argument: Proceedings of COMMA 2010, pages 75-86, Amsterdam, The Netherlands, The Netherlands, 2010. IOS Press. http://portal.acm.org/citation. cfm?id=1860828.1860838.
- Trevor J. M. Bench-Capon. Try to see it my way: Modelling persuasion in legal discourse. Artificial Intelligence and Law, 11:271–287, 2003. 10.1023/B:ARTI.0000045997.45038.8f.
- [10] Philippe Besnard and Sylvie Doutre. Checking the acceptability of a set of arguments. In James P. Delgrande and Torsten Schaub, editors, 10th International Workshop on Non-Monotonic Reasoning (NMR 2004), Whistler, Canada, June 6-8, 2004, Proceedings, pages 59–64, 2004.
- [11] Philippe Besnard and Anthony Hunter. A logic-based theory of deductive arguments. Artificial Intelligence, 128(1-2):203–235, 2001.
- [12] Pierre Bisquert, Claudette Cayrol, Florence Dupin de Saint-Cyr Bannay, and Marie-Christine Lagasquie-Schiex. Change in argumentation systems: exploring the interest of removing an argument (regular paper). In Salem Benferhat and John Grant, editors, International Conference on Scalable Uncertainty Management (SUM), Dayton, Ohio, 10/10/2011-12/10/2011, pages 275–288,

http://www.springerlink.com/, 2011. Springer-Verlag. http://www. irit.fr/~Florence.Bannay/publis/BisquertSum2011.pdf.

- [13] Pierre Bisquert, Claudette Cayrol, Florence Dupin de Saint-Cyr Bannay, and Marie-Christine Lagasquie-Schiex. Duality between addition and removal. In Salvatore Greco, Bernadette Bouchon-Meunier, Giulianella Coletti, Mario Fedrizzi, Benedetto Matarazzo, and Ronald R. Yager, editors, Advances on Computational Intelligence, volume 297 of Communications in Computer and Information Science, pages 219–229. Springer, 2012.
- [14] Pierre Bisquert, Claudette Cayrol, Florence Dupin de Saint-Cyr Bannay, and Marie-Christine Lagasquie-Schiex. Characterizing change in abstract argumentation systems. In Edouardo Fermé, Dov Gabbay, and Guillermo Simari, editors, *Trends in Belief Revision and Argumentation Dynamics*, volume 48 of *Studies in Logic*, pages 75–102. College Publications, http://www.collegepublications.co.uk/, 2013. http://www. irit.fr/publis/ADRIA/PapersDupin/DraftBisquertandco.pdf.
- [15] Pierre Bisquert, Claudette Cayrol, Florence Dupin de Saint-Cyr Bannay, and Marie-Christine Lagasquie-Schiex. Enforcement in argumentation is a kind of update (regular paper). In W. Liu, V.S. Subrahmanian, and J. Wijsen, editors, International Conference on Scalable Uncertainty Management (SUM), Washington DC, USA, 16/09/2013-18/09/2013, number 8078 in LNAI, pages 30–43, http://www.springerlink.com/, 2013. Springer-Verlag.
- [16] Pierre Bisquert, Claudette Cayrol, Florence Dupin de Saint-Cyr Bannay, and Marie-Christine Lagasquie-Schiex. Goal-driven changes in argumentation: A theoretical framework and a tool. (regular paper). In International Conference on Tools with Artificial Intelligence (ICTAI), Washington, USA, 04/11/2013-06/11/2013, pages 588–595, http://ieeexplore.ieee.org/, 2013. IEEExplore digital library.
- [17] Guido Boella, Souhila Kaci, and Leendert van der Torre. Dynamics in argumentation with single extensions: Abstraction principles and the grounded extension. In Claudio Sossai and Gaetano Chemello, editors, 10th European Conference on Symbolic and Quantitative Approaches to Reasoning with Uncertainty (ECSQARU 2009), volume 5590 of Lecture Notes in Computer Science, pages 107–118. Springer, 2009.

- [18] Guido Boella, Souhila Kaci, and Leendert van der Torre. Dynamics in argumentation with single extensions: Attack refinement and the grounded extension. In Carles Sierra, Cristiano Castelfranchi, Keith S. Decker, and Jaime Simão Sichman, editors, 8th International Joint Conference on Autonomous Agents and Multiagent Systems (AAMAS 2009), pages 1213–1214. IFAAMAS, 2009.
- [19] Blai Bonet and Hector Geffner. Arguing for decisions: A qualitative model of decision making. In Eric Horvitz and Finn Verner Jensen, editors, In Proceedings of the 12th Conference on Uncertainty in Artificial Intelligence, pages 98–105. Morgan Kaufmann, 1996.
- [20] Elise Bonzon and Nicolas Maudet. On the outcomes of multiparty persuasion. In Proceedings of the 10th International Joint Conference on Autonomous Agents and Multiagent Systems (AAMAS'11), pages 47–54, 2011.
- [21] Richard Booth, Souhila Kaci, Tjitze Rienstra, and Leendert Torre. A logical theory about dynamics in abstract argumentation. In Weiru Liu, V.S. Subrahmanian, and Jef Wijsen, editors, *Scalable Uncertainty Management*, volume 8078 of *Lecture Notes in Computer Science*, pages 148–161. Springer Berlin Heidelberg, 2013.
- [22] Claudette Cayrol, Florence Dupin de Saint-Cyr Bannay, and Marie-Christine Lagasquie-Schiex. Change in abstract argumentation frameworks: Adding an argument. *Journal of Artificial Intelligence Research*, 38:49–84, 2010.
- [23] Marie-Odile Cordier and Pierre Siegel. Prioritized transitions for updates. In ECSQARU, pages 142–150, 1995.
- [24] S. Coste-Marquis, S. Konieczny, J.-G. Mailly, and P. Marquis. On the revision of argumentation systems: Minimal change of argument statuses. In C. Baral and G. De Giacomo, editors, *International Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR)*. AAAI Press, 2014. http://www.aaai.org/ocs/index.php/KR/KR14/ paper/view/7967.
- [25] S. Coste-Marquis, S. Konieczny, J.-G. Mailly, and P. Marquis. A translation-based approach for revision of argumentation frameworks. In *Logics in Artificial Intelligence*, pages 397–411. Springer, 2014.

- [26] S. Coste-Marquis, S. Konieczny, J.-G. Mailly, and P. Marquis. Extension enforcement in abstract argumentation as an optimization problem. In *International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJ-CAI)*, pages 2876–2882, 2015.
- [27] Sylvie Coste-Marquis, Caroline Devred, and Pierre Marquis. Constrained argumentation frameworks. In *Proc. of KR*, pages 112–122, Lake District, 2006.
- [28] Martin Diller, Adrian Haret, Thomas Linsbichler, Stefan Rümmele, and Stefan Woltran. An extension-based approach to belief revision in abstract argumentation. In *Proceedings of the Twenty-Fourth International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI 2015)*, pages 2926–2932, 2015.
- [29] S. Doutre, A. Herzig, and L. Perrussel. A Dynamic Logic Framework for Abstract Argumentation. In C. Baral and G. De Giacomo, editors, *In*ternational Conference on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning (KR), pages 62–71, http://www.aaai.org/Press/press.php, 2014. AAAI Press.
- [30] D. Dubois, F. Dupin de Saint-Cyr Bannay, and H. Prade. Update postulates without inertia (regular paper). In Symbolic and Quantitative Approaches to Reasoning and Uncertainty (Selected papers of the Europ. Conf. ECSQARU'95), Fribourg, Switzerland, , number 946 in LNAI, pages 162–170, http://www.springerlink.com/, 1995. Springer-Verlag.
- [31] Phan Minh Dung. On the acceptability of arguments and its fundamental role in nonmonotonic reasoning, logic programming and n-person games. *Artificial Intelligence*, 77(2):321–358, 1995.
- [32] John Fox and Peter McBurney. Decision making by intelligent agents: logical argument, probabilistic inference and the maintenance of beliefs and acts. In Salem Benferhat and Enrico Giunchiglia, editors, 9th International Workshop on Non-Monotonic Reasoning (NMR 2002), April 19-21, Toulouse, France, Proceedings, pages 293–301, 2002.
- [33] M. Ghallab, D. Nau, and P. Traverso. Automated planning: theory and practice. Morgan Kaufmann Publishers, Elsevier, 2004.

- [34] Davide Grossi and Wiebe van der Hoek. Audience-based uncertainty in abstract argument games. In IJCAI 2013, Proceedings of the 23rd International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence, Beijing, China, August 3-9, 2013, 2013.
- [35] C. Hadjinikolis, S. Modgil, E. Black, P. McBurney, and Y. Siantos. Opponent modelling in persuasion dialogues. In *Proceedings of the Twenty-Third International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence (IJCAI* 2013), pages 164–170, 2013.
- [36] A. Herzig. On updates with integrity constraints. In Belief Change in Rational Agents, 2005. http://drops.dagstuhl.de/opus/ volltexte/2005/334.
- [37] A. Herzig and O. Rifi. Propositional belief base update and minimal change. Artificial Intelligence, 115:107–138, 1999.
- [38] Nikos Karacapilidis and Dimitris Papadias. Computer supported argumentation and collaborative decision making: the HERMES system. *Information Systems*, 26(4):259–277, 2001.
- [39] H. Katsuno and A.O. Mendelzon. On the difference between updating a knowledge base and revising it. In J. Allen and al., editors, Proc. of the 2nd Inter. Conf. on Principles of Knowledge Representation and Reasoning, pages 387–394, Cambridge, MA, 1991.
- [40] H. Katsuno and A.O. Mendelzon. Propositional knowledge base revision and minimal change. Artificial Intelligence, 52:263–294, 1991.
- [41] Stephen Cole Kleene. *Mathematical Logic*. John Wiley & Sons, 1967.
- [42] Léa Sombé. A glance at revision and updating in knowledge bases. International Journal of Intelligent Systems, 9(1):1–27, 1994.
- [43] Beishui Liao, Li Jin, and Robert C. Koons. Dynamics of argumentation systems: A division-based method. Artificial Intelligence, 175(11):1790 – 1814, 2011.
- [44] Martín O. Moguillansky, Nicolás D. Rotstein, Marcelo A. Falappa, Alejandro J. García, and Guillermo R. Simari. Argument theory change through defeater activation. In *Proceeding of the 2010 conference* on Computational Models of Argument (COMMA 2010), pages 359– 366, Amsterdam, The Netherlands, The Netherlands, 2010. IOS Press. http://portal.acm.org/citation.cfm?id=1860828.1860862.

- [45] Emilia Oikarinen and Stefan Woltran. Characterizing strong equivalence for argumentation frameworks. Artif. Intell., 175(14-15):1985– 2009, 2011.
- [46] Nir Oren, Katie Atkinson, and Hengfei Li. Group persuasion through uncertain audience modelling. In Computational Models of Argument -Proceedings of COMMA 2012, Vienna, Austria, September 10-12, 2012, pages 350–357, 2012.
- [47] Nir Oren and Timothy J. Norman. Arguing using opponent models. In Argumentation in Multi-Agent Systems, 6th International Workshop, ArgMAS 2009, Budapest, Hungary, May 12, 2009. Revised Selected and Invited Papers, pages 160–174, 2009.
- [48] Henry Prakken. Formal systems for persuasion dialogue. *Knowledge* Engineering Review, 21(2):163–188, 2006.
- [49] Tjitze Rienstra, Matthias Thimm, and Nir Oren. Opponent models with uncertainty for strategic argumentation. In IJCAI 2013, Proceedings of the 23rd International Joint Conference on Artificial Intelligence, Beijing, China, August 3-9, 2013, 2013.
- [50] Nicolás D. Rotstein, Martín O. Moguillansky, Marcelo A. Falappa, Alejandro J. García, and Guillermo R. Simari. Argument theory change: Revision upon warrant. In *Proceedings of the 2008 conference on Computational Models of Argument (COMMA 2008)*, pages 336–347, Amsterdam, The Netherlands, The Netherlands, 2008. IOS Press.
- [51] Robert R. Stoll. Sets, Logic and Axiomatic theories. W.H. Freeman & co Ltd, 1975.
- [52] Matthias Thimm and Alejandro Javier García. Classification and strategical issues of argumentation games on structured argumentation frameworks. In 9th International Conference on Autonomous Agents and Multiagent Systems (AAMAS 2010), Toronto, Canada, May 10-14, 2010, Volume 1-3, pages 1247–1254, 2010.
- [53] Hans P. van Ditmarsch, Andreas Herzig, and Tiago De Lima. Public announcements, public assignments and the complexity of their logic. *Journal of Applied Non-Classical Logics*, 22(3):249–273, 2012. http: //dx.doi.org/10.1080/11663081.2012.705964.

- [54] Serena Villata, Guido Boella, Dov M. Gabbay, Leendert van der Torre, and Joris Hulstijn. A logic of argumentation for specification and verification of abstract argumentation frameworks. *Annals of Mathematics* and Artificial Intelligence, 66(1-4):199–230, 2012.
- [55] D. Walton and E.C.W. Krabbe. Commitment in Dialogue: Basic Concepts of Interpersonal Reasoning. SUNY series in Logic and Language. State University of New York Press, 1995.
- [56] M. Winslett. Reasoning about action using a possible models approach. In Proc. of the 7th National Conference on Artificial Intelligence, pages 89–93, St. Paul, 1988.
- [57] M. Winslett. Updating Logical Databases. Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, UK, 1990.
- [58] Michael Wooldridge, Peter McBurney, and Simon Parsons. On the meta-logic of arguments. In 4th International Joint Conference on Autonomous Agents and Multiagent Systems (AAMAS 2005), July 25-29, 2005, Utrecht, The Netherlands, pages 560–567. ACM, 2005.
- [59] Zhiqiang Zhuang. Argument rejection and acceptance through attack abstractions, 2013. Séminaire "Belief Change and Argumentation in Multi-Agent Scenarios", Schloss Dagstuhl - Leibniz Center for Informatics, Dagstuhl, Allemagne.